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Financial and Operating Highlights

MBEREERE

Result EF

Revenue WA

Profit attributable to /NI ZE DN
owners of the Company i3yl

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EARGA%ZEF| GE(L)

Proposed final dividend EERTRARE

per share (HK cents)

P BB

BRI

Financial Position

mEBEEFME
FHESRITERER

Net current assets
Total interest-bearing bank loans

Key Financial Ratios FEMKLLE
Gross profit margin FEAE
Net profit margin ]2
Return on equity [ ENEIEE
Current ratio BN &
Gearing ratio™ BEAGLEO
Operating Statistics EEYE
Throughput (metric tonnes) & & (AHE)
Nanjing terminal R 5E
Ningbo terminal RS A
Tianjin terminal KEETE
Jetty utilisation rate® [t el
Nanjing terminal [Eapa
Ningbo terminal 22
Tianjin terminal ROEHGER

Notes:

(1) The calculation of the gearing ratio is based on the sum of non-
current and current bank loans divided by total assets multiplied
by 100%.

(2)  The utilisation rate is calculated by our record of the annual actual
throughput via jetties divided by (i) the total annual designed
throughput capacity of jetties for Nanjing terminal and Ningbo
terminal in relation to the operating period; and (ii) the total annual
adjusted designed throughput capacity of the jetty for the Tianjin
terminal in relation to the operating period.

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 % Change
FET FHET FE %
257,770 240,675 71
99,100 90,076 10.0
8.93 9.15 (2.4)
5.5 5 10
237,341 271,393 (12.6)
12,031 156,409 (92.3)
59.5% 57.5% 2.0
44.2% 42.9% 1.3
11.0% 10.6% 0.4
4.1 2.5
1.2% 14.3% (13.1)
1,717,700 1,588,200 8.2
329,300 479,000 (81.3)
67,100 222,300 (69.8)
50.5% 48.8% 1.7
33.0% 61.4% (28.4)
22.4% 45.4% (23.0)
P& -

(1) BEBRBRLERIIAERELABRITER
BrIAEEBFRIA100%TE -

(2 FRAXRUGEFEEERSTELERMRAG)
MR E R HIEE AR EENIEEE
RETEATHE: Ri) K RTGEA B L EY
MRS AREISER A FRTHERATH -
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
(the “Group” or “Dragon Crown”) for the year ended 31 December
2012.

OVERCOMES CHALLENGES THROUGH
OUTSTANDING RESULTS

During 2012, the global economic environment has continued to
be challenging. Economic growth and confidence were buffeted
by the slow growth in the US as well as debt crises in several
European countries. Economic growth in China was slightly affected
and slowed down, although there is still quite an encouraging GDP
growth.

Despite the challenging economic environment, Dragon Crown
recorded outstanding results for 2012 with revenue increased by
7.1% to HK$257.8 million (2011: HK$240.7 million), profit before tax
increased by 28.9% to HK$139.9 million (2011: HK$108.6 million)
and net profit up 10.4% to HK$113.9 million (2011: HK$103.2
million). The encouraging financial performance is an evidence of our
strong operational performance and capabilities to meet the robust
demand for our services. This success has been guided by the vision
of our management and our unique business model, providing us
sustained and predictable earnings. Also, the nature of the liquid
chemicals that we handled, representing the basic ingredients in
many products used in daily life including paints, textiles, adhesives,
packaging and pharmaceuticals, enjoys a consistent demand in their
own right.

Moreover, the expansion of our Phase lll facilities in the Nanjing
terminal has made good progress according to the plan during the
year. We expect that when our new tanks commence operation in
2018, plus our second cryogenic ethylene tank start to be built in
2013 and commerce operation in 2014, the accelerate expansion
should support us to further capture the immense opportunities
available within China’s liquid chemical industry.

During the year, we have paid close attention to our cash flow and
maintained a strong balance sheet and a solid liquidity position. As a
result, we have sufficient capital resources to support the continued
growth of the Group.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BOIRLARR

AAEREKRESS((EEL|)MAZRS
MEBERARAR([AEE] =[5 ])
HZE2012F 1231 B It FEZFEELE -

RRSBERRERARR
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

DIVIDENDS

To acknowledge the support of our shareholders and to continue
with the Group’s dividend payout policy, the Board proposed a final
dividend per ordinary share of HK5.5 cents (2011: HK5 cents), which
represents 61.6% of the profit attributable to shareholders for the
year.

SAFETY

The safety of people has continued to be our top priority over the
years. For this reason, we provide regular training to all of our staff
and develop and implement HSE (Health, Safety and Environment)
policies in accordance with national and industry standards. In 2012,
we did not experience any material incidents in our operations. We
intend to strive for improvement with our ultimate goal being to
provide safe and quality services to our customers.

PROMISING OUTLOOK TO SUPPORT
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

With new policies rolled out by the PRC Government recently to
stimulate economic growth, it is expected that the Government will
further advance reforms and optimize China’s economic structure
and growth pattern. Moreover, supported by the rapidly expanding
consumer market in China, we are very optimistic about the
prospects of the liquid chemical industry and believe demand for our
services will remain high.

Leveraging our world-class expertise and excellence in our facilities
and services, we see enormous opportunity to deliver cost-effective
solutions to our customers. We have built a strong reputation
with our quality service that has earned their trust, especially from
renowned large scale multinational chemical enterprises. In this way,
we are riding the global trend of outsource logistics arrangements, to
help customers to reduce costs, increase flexibility in business and
boost their logistic efficiency.

The 11 tanks at the Nanjing terminal are expected to commence
operation in 2013, 4 of which have already secured long-term
terminal service contracts with customers and will start to contribute
profit to the Group.

B2

FERAEEMRSIRBEBR - AR BRH
BREMZF  EEEEFRERARSET
A 5@ AL 5.5 8 (2011 4F = 5784l) » &
RAFER R EERTA61.6% °

=2
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2 RIRROBUR - R2012F » ALET &
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REERBHRE -

MRTEAMITRRER

8 &~ B T 30T B 3 o 8 R SRR AR O 0
£ EHBRAEE - THENRE &P
BEBEBEREN - X H - §ORH
BORBMISMREER - AREHRE(L
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RIS T SKADAG =k

BREBAEUHALKTIHNEEAD 212
ENRE MR AEERERE AT
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Dragon Crown will continue its steady expansion of its facilities
and services and work closely with its business partners in order
to capture the increasing demand from current and potential
customers.

CONCLUSION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our colleagues
and staff for their dedication and hard work. | would also like to
express my gratitude to all of our business partners, customers
and shareholders for their resolute commitment and support of
the Group. Moving forward, we are striving to sustain and create
value for our shareholders. | look forward to pursuing this path of
development and growth with you and greatly appreciate you putting
your trust in Dragon Crown.

Ng Wai Man

Chairman

Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited
12 March 2013

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENREEAE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NG, Wai Man, aged 56, is an executive Director and the
chairman of the Company. Mr. NG is the founder of our Group
and is principally responsible for operation of our Board and is the
key decision-maker of our Group. He is responsible for formulating
the overall business strategic development for our Group. Mr. NG
has accumulated around 24 years of management and operation
experience in the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products
industry. Mr. NG is the founder of Dragon Source Industrial Limited
and its invested entity, Ningbo Haixiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor of Ningbo Xinxiang Liquid Chemical Store Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Xinxiang”)), and has managed its operation since 1988.
Mr. NG was the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon
Crown Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd from April 2004 to 2007
responsible for overseeing strategic development and management
of resources. From December 1993 to September 2004, Mr. NG
was a director of Ningbo Huaxiang Inspection Co., Ltd, a company
which provides inspection, certification and testing services. He
served as the chairman and general manager from October 1997
to October 2006 and legal representative from October 1997 to
October 2007 for Ningbo Free Trade Zone Dragon Crown Chemical
International Trade Company Ltd., a trading company, responsible
for strategic business management. Mr. NG was appointed as our
Director on 16 July 2010 and was re-designated as our executive
Director on 30 November 2010.

PITESE

RERS%LE 560 ARAMITESHE
B REERTEENEIBA  FEEBE
EE2EF BRAEEFERRE B
EHEIAEERBEBRKER - REL
FESEMETREBCERITET R LR
CAFMEBMBIELER - REERENL
IBERARRERENSE - HRFHRE
tIERHERAR (BRFMRELCIAHE
ERAR(EREFAMD AT WEIEA - I
B 1988 FREEIE HIEME - R&EA B 2004 F
4 AZE 2007 FH{EE REMREEC THFE
WHEARAAMBHEREAREK  BRE
BREHFTIRERERE - B19934F 12 A&
2004F9F + RAEEEAZEREDNRBER
AR(—RBEBA - REAZ RIS A
RA)EE - E 1997 F£10 A & 2006 F10
AMETERRBEEEAMCIERES A
RARI(—KEHRE) MESRFRLIE
BERKEBEE LB 1997410 AZE2007
F1OABEEHAEZRARMEARSE - REAL
R2010F7 A16 B EEM AR ARIES -
PR 2010F 11 A30 BT HITES »
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. TING Yian Ann, aged 52, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. TING is principally responsible
for overall management and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with our key customers. Mr. TING
joined our Group in 2003. Since 2007, Mr. TING has served as
the president and legal representative of Nanjing Dragon Crown
Liquid Chemicals Terminal Co., Ltd. He has accumulated around
24 years of management and operation experience in the terminal
and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. TING was a regional budget coordinator of Astra
Asia Regional Office, a pharmaceutical company, in Singapore
from 1986 to 1988, his major duties included coordinating and
preparing budget for all regional offices within Asia and reporting
to managing director. He served as an account executive from
1988 to 1990, a senior account manager, sales and marketing
department from 1990 to 1992, an assistant vice president, sales
and marketing department from 1992 to 1993, a vice president,
regional development and marketing department from 1993 to 1995,
a senior vice president, regional development and marketing from
1995 to 1997, and president and chief executive officer from 1997
to 2001 of GATX (Jurong) Terminals Pte Ltd., a company providing
global networks in bulk liquid storage, packaging, distribution and
logistic services in Singapore. His major duties at GATX (Jurong)
Terminals Pte Ltd. covered overall planning and operation of the
company in the region, formulating strategies, cultivating relationship
with customers and authorities and developing internal controls
system. Mr. TING was the deputy chairman of the Singapore
Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001 and also served as
the chairman of the Logistics & Distribution Committee established
under the Singapore Chemical Industry Council from 1997 to 2001.
Mr. TING graduated from University of Southern California in 1985
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration. Mr.
TING was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November
2010.

EEREREEAR

REREE 525 ARAIPITESHR
THEE REETZEEEEEE - %
BEHIET TBRRNEETEZHEFHEL -
PR S A FA 2003 F M A AL E - 52007 F
B REERFERARAREB L IEED
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MEFREECERITETEBBR24FH
EEMEELR - EMAREERF - BRE
A A 1986 F 2= 1988 & A E L # I Astra
(—KBEFRRA]) Tt & F R A R 78
EWmAE  FEAERERARERNE
DMtEREENTEYE  WRESHLE
R o 1% I 1988 F = 1990 4F £ 1 M4
GATX (Jurong) Terminals Pte Ltd. (— Szt
HEREBRET B85 2HEREREE
BRPmmAR) EERFPEMT - 19904
Z1ORFHRAHEREESBFINSREP
IR 1002 FFE 1003 FIETIHE LTS
HEEPIBNERIRE - M 1993 F £ 1995 F
EARERERTISHERSBMIEBE  »
1005 F £ 1997 F TR B R M THIGHE
EP =R EIARE AR 1997 F£E 2001 F
AT ARE AT AREL © 1 GATX (Jurong)
Terminals Pte Ltd. 8 BB EH B 1E:2 A FE
EARBEEARE REE - BIFTREE  E
HEFRBNE R BENLRHIETAIBE
IS o BRYEA B 1997 4F & 2001 SEEERT
MEBTHEZESSRIERE - WH 1997 F
BE2001 FHRAEF MK CBIEZESHR
MR EDIEEESERF - ML 1985
FEERBENMMNAZ REIFERES
TELT o RN 20105E 11 A0 B EER T
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENREEAE

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin, aged 51, is an executive Director. Mr.
CHONG joined our Group in 1994. Mr. CHONG is principally
responsible for business and strategic development, major decision-
making and communications with major customers. He has
accumulated around 18 years of experience in the liquid chemical
products terminal and storage industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. CHONG worked for Mitsui & Company (Hong Kong) Limited, an
international conglomerate engaging in various businesses, including
worldwide logistics and financing, development of infrastructure, for
over seven years. He was in the chemicals division and undertook
business support centered around petrochemical products chain
for logistics and distribution. He was also responsible for developing
strategic partnerships and customer relations. Mr. CHONG
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1986 with
a Degree of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr. CHONG was
appointed as an executive Director on 30 November 2010.

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming, aged 47, is an executive Director. Ms.
CHAN is responsible for our Group’s day-to-day management,
administration as well as human resources management. She joined
our Group in 1988. Ms. CHAN has accumulated around 24 years of
management and operation experience in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Ms.
CHAN worked for Wai Hing Company, a trading company, from
November 1986 to July 1988 responsible for arrangements in trading
of chemicals. Ms. CHAN was appointed as an executive Director on
30 November 2010.

HBEBXRE 51 RITES - HEE
P194FEMARER - TEEFEBE
EBRREBHE  EERARREFENT
PHi4E - RERBLELERIGEMFETITE
HBRBBI8FAIEE - EIMAREER
HAEFER=HDE(FEBE)BERAR(—K
BIRRa s ELEER - BIERIK
m R E RIS A R E R ER) 8
BEF - FEEBE(CTER - HITBAL
BREFT - BETEMYR R D HERMH
EBERH BTN EBEREEBRBHERER
R HEERI186FEREREBEH X
RE - BRINEESLEA6 - HAER
2010F 11 A0 REZEAWITES -

BRERZLT 4755 BRITES - R L
BEALSEMNBEER  TEREANER
B o M98 FMAKREE - Rz +1E
REBCEREERREFETEREGRIRB24F
WERFEIELER - EMAREEA - &
Z+BE19864F 11 AE1988F 7 ATRMNE
52 & Wai Hing Company * TEZ8 &%
{tBmE S - R+ 20105F 11 H30H %
ZERPITES -
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Shijie, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LUO is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. He was deputy factory director of SINOPEC
Sichuan Vinylon Works from 1988 to 1996. Mr. LUO was deputy
general manager of SINOPEC Sales Company from 1996 to 1999,
deputy director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2000 to
2003, and director of SINOPEC Chemical Department from 2003
to 2006. From 2005 to 2006, he also was general manager of
SINOPEC Chemical Products Sales Company. Mr. LUO graduated
from Tianjin University in 1968, majored in Precision Instrument.
He obtained the qualification as an engineer from Chongging City
Government in 1981. He was appointed as senior engineer by
SINOPEC in 1987.

Mr. ZHU Wujun, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 November 2010, Mr. ZHU is also a member
of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of our Board. Mr. ZHU was the deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company from 1985 to 1998. From
1998 to 2005, Mr. ZHU was a director and deputy manager of
Sinopec Yangzi Petrochemical Company Ltd. From 2005 to 2006,
Mr.ZHU was the deputy manager of Sinopec Chemical Products
Sales Company. Mr. ZHU was also the chairman of Yangyang
Chemical logistics and Trading Company from 1995 to 2005. Mr.
ZHU graduated from Zhejiang University in 1965 with a bachelor
degree in chemical engineering. He has obtained the qualification
as a senior economist from the assessment committee of China
Petrochemical Company which assessed his qualification according
to standards set by the State Council in 1995.

EEREREEAR
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Directors and Senior Management
EERENREEAE

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 November 2010. Mr. LAU is also
chairman of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee of our Board. Mr. LAU served as the
financial controller of a subsidiary of NWS Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board over 3 years and had worked
with PricewaterhouseCoppers for over 5 years. Mr. LAU graduated
from Oregon State University with a bachelor degree of science in
Business Administration in 1989. Mr. LAU is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. LAU has been serving as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board, since April 2003. Mr. LAU has served as an independent
non-executive director of China Qinfa Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board since June 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHONG Man Kit, aged 35, was appointed as the chief financial
officer and company secretary of our Group on 17 July 2012. Mr.
Chong has over 13 years of professional experience in auditing,
accounting and corporate financial management. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. CHONG worked as an audit manager in KPMG with
international work exposure in Hong Kong, mainland China and
United Kingdom from 2001 to 2010. During his tenure with KPMG,
he was experienced in providing audit and advisory services to
clients listed in New York, London and Hong Kong. Mr. CHONG
was the chief financial officer and deputy general manager of a
subsidiary of an American listed company from 2010 to 2012. Mr.
CHONG studied at Indiana University Bloomington in the United
States and graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in 2001
with a Degree (Honors) of Bachelor of Business Administration. Mr.
CHONG is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and is an IFRS certificate holder of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. ZOU Qing Long, aged 48, is a director and general manager
of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. ZOU has joined our Group since May
2004. Mr. ZOU is principally responsible for our Group’s overall
operational management in Nanjing. Mr. ZOU has accumulated
around ten years of management and operation experience in
the terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry
Mr. Zou’s major responsibility with the Group includes managing
and coordinating operation workflow, recruitment and training of
managers under his supervision, developing guidelines of operation
and maintenance. He is overseeing operations in our terminals in
Nanjing, Ningbo and Tianjin. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in the China Maritime Safety Administration for 16 years in which he
gained valuable maritime logistics experience. Mr. ZOU graduated
from Nanjing Political College of the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army with a bachelor degree in Economics Management in 2003.

Mr. LAU Chi Ming, Sammy, aged 55, is the deputy general
manager of Nanjing Dragon Crown. Mr. LAU is principally
responsible for our Group’s business and new project development
of petrochemical terminal in Nanjing. Mr. LAU has accumulated
around 24 years of management and operation experience in the
terminal and storage of liquid chemical products industry. Mr. LAU
was an engineer of ExxonMobil Hong Kong Limited from 1988
to 2004 and he assumed management roles in HSE, logistics,
operations and maintenance. Mr. LAU graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Engineering
in 1979. Mr. LAU was elected as a Graduate of the Institution of
Engineers, Australia on 10 January 1985 and has been included in
the list of competent persons for Class 2-inspection and certification
of LPG compound and cylinder stores by Electrical & Mechanical
Services Department, Government of Hong Kong since 6 November
1996. He joined our Group in April 2005 as a project manager.

EEREREEAR
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Directors and Senior Management
EERGREEAR

Mr. LI Lian Chun, aged 54, is the general manager of Tianjin
Tianlong. Mr. LI has joined our Group since March 1994. Mr.
LI is principally responsible for our Group’s overall operational
management in Tianjin including managing and coordinating
workflow, setting up annual budget and fiscal plan, providing training
and recruitment of managers. Mr. LI has accumulated around 18
years of management and operation experience in the terminal and
storage of liquid chemical products industry since his joining our
Group in 1994. Mr. LI graduated from Tianjin Normal University with
a bachelor of Art degree in English in 1984 and completed Post
Graduate Course for Further Study in business management in
Nankai University.

Mr. XIANG Xiao Chu, aged 57, is the general manager of Ningbo
Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang. Mr. XIANG has joined our Group
since November 1995. Mr. XIANG is principally responsible for our
Group’s overall operational management in Ningbo. Mr. XIANG
has accumulated around 20 years of management and operation
experience of which around 17 years are in the terminal and storage
of liquid chemical products industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
XIANG served as deputy director the factory, division deputy chief of
Human Resource and Security and an office administrator in Ningbo
No.2 Pharmaceutical Factory of Zhejiang Province from February
1988 to October 1992. During the period from November 1992
to September 1995, Mr. XIANG served as an office administrator
handling selection and recruitment of new staff, finance management
and observing compliance of HSE policies of Zhejiang Chemicals
Factory (Yongxin Company). Mr. XIANG has served as a deputy
director and director of tank field, business manager and general
manager assistant in Ningbo Ninxiang and Ningbo Xinxiang since
October 1995. Mr. XIANG completed administration management
course of Self-Study Examination of the Higher Education of Zhejiang
Province in October 1990.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Dragon Crown is a leading PRC integrated terminal service provider
that specialises in the storage and handling of liquid chemical
products through three terminals in Nanjing, Tianjin and Ningbo.
Over the years, the Group has strategically set up jetties and tank
farms (“Terminals”) along coastal areas to capture the immense
demand from the petroleum and chemical industries in China.
Dragon Crown offers comprehensive terminal and storage services,
including loading and unloading facilities at its self-owned jetties,
liquid chemical storage at its tank farms, and delivery to and from
customer’s factories through dedicated chemical pipelines or other
transportation methods.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the throughput volume
of liquid chemical products handled by the Nanjing, Tianjin and
Ningbo terminals reached 1,717,700 metric tonnes, 67,100 metric
tonnes and 329,300 metric tonnes (2011: 1,588,200 metric tonnes,
222,300 metric tonnes and 479,000 metric tonnes) respectively, with
combined throughput volume amounting to 2,114,100 metric tonnes
(2011: 2,289,500 metric tonnes). The following table provides an
overview of the existing terminals and facilities as at 31 December
2012:

Existing Terminals and facilities Nanjing
REBEKRE =5
Number of tanks TS 20
Storage capacity (m?) HEAE(LHK) 152,000
Number of berth YA R 2
Berthing capacity (dwt) JEALEE 7 (BEME) 25,000*
Jetty designed throughput IEERGT R E

capacity (metric tonnes) (AWE) 2,600,000

* Comprises two berths with capacity of 20,000 dwt and 5,000 dwt,
respectively.

BEERWED T

RO

EM AT E—RARNGRATBERS
W EBEMR - REREEN=EBHA
ARG RERRBBR - SER
A S B B M W70 B ST T S B
W (1558 ) SRR K B o B A i (L 147
ENEATS - WIRHEA HEREHE
PRS- IEH H T SR AR A A5 -
RERE R GOR (R S RE B E
C TEEREMBR T EE R TRE
B o

REZ2012F 12 A1 HIEFE F BR * &
ERERBERENRBLELRETED R
1,717, 70020 + 67,10072M }2.329,3007~
ME (2011 4 : 1,588,200 AWE + 222,300 AMA
K 479,000 AME) - & EH2E 2,114,100
AWM (2011 4 : 2,289,500 AMA) - TR 27
7R2012F12 A31 B IR A E & EH

BE -

=

Ningbo Tianjin Total
B RE #at
12 15 47
29,000 24,900 205,900
1 1 4

3,000 3,000
100,000 300,000 3,000,000

* PR {23 51 /4% 20,000 ¢ 2 WA A1 5,000 B 5
WAEERLARRK ©
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The Group’s flagship terminal is located in the Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park and is also the primary source of revenue and profit,
accounting for approximately 96.6% of the Group’s total profit (2011:
92.7%). The Nanijing Chemical Industry Park is one of the world’s
leading production bases for a wide range of chemicals and home
to some of the leading chemical producers and users. The Group’s
major customer, Celanese Corporation (NYSE:CE), a world leading
producer of acetyl products, is also situated in the industrial park and
accounted for 88.4% of the Group’s total revenue during the year —
equivalent to HK$227.8 million (2011: HK$236.0 million).

The construction of Nanjing terminal Phase lll is on schedule,
and will ultimately help further to expand the Group’s throughput
capacity to 4,400,000 metric tonnes per year. The Group has also
signed a construction agreement on 6 February 2013 to build a new
cryogenic ethylene tank for the storage and handling of deep cooled
liquid at =104 degree Celsius and needs specific techniques to build
and maintain the tank. The tank has a storage capacity of 20,000 m?,
construction of which will commence in the first quarter of 2013 with
operation expected to start by the third quarter of 2014.

The Ningbo terminal retained a stable profit during the year. For the
Tianjin Terminal, business was temporarily affected earlier in the year
by the construction works of the local government along the inner
river of Tianjin Bin Hai Xin Qu. Construction work was completed in
May 2012 and the Group considers the event as a one-off incident.
Normal operation has resumed in the second half of 2012, and a
volume rebound is expected in 2013.

Dragon Crown continued to maintain a healthy financial position, with
total assets of HK$1,042.0 million (2011: HK$1,092.5 million) and
total equity of HK$958.6 million (2011: HK$894.8 million). The Group
is in a strong financial position with cash on hand of HK$265.7 million
(2011: HK$403.2 million) and the gearing ratio decreased to 1.2%
(2011: 14.3%) which was due to the repayment of bank loans in the
year.

AEEEBHECTHEAMEETER - 1
AEEZRERE  HASEREFEELY
96.6% (20114 : 92.7%) » I RIL B T %
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ENEBEFENEH(MOBEIZA
CE) Attt RELMIBIEREER © I
RZIER RAFEEAEERBRAZ
88.4%— 18 & 1227818 & st (20114 :
2.3601E%& L) °

FARTEEE=MINEET - &&BFERE
B AN 2E—FEAREGTF 4,400,000 2
WA o $%I7TEB’\2013$ZH6EI 257

P IEEER —EFER LI RFERE
E%T&J;Eﬁ?%&%woztﬁmﬁiﬁ‘&%(“
R) UTHBZABFHRER REERI-
ZREEREHTAEE20,0003 5K 0 R
2013 FE—FEMIEE - WHAN 2014
FE=ZFEHR/ALE -

RAFE  FRBHELAFETEN - 2R

RAEMGTE - FBHEE X E BN ERE
BESFENNTEZLTIENTE - BRT
ER2012F5 ANB T AAEBERAERL
B —IRIEEM - R2012F T £F - %5
SEEMELERLE AL 2R 2013
FEIFA -

BARERIFEBEOVENRR  HEEE
7 10.420 B8 7T (2011 4F : 10.925 B8 7T)
K B RE9.586 B 7L (20114F : 8.94818
BIL) o AEBEMBMRRNAS) - FHRER
2.657 B8 70 (2011 4F : 4.032188 L) K&
ERBEXRAAFEEERITERM TRE
1.2% (20114 : 14.3%) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group entered into a memorandum of understanding with Dow
Chemical China Holdings Pte. Ltd. (‘DOW’) in 2011 to establish
chemical terminal facilities in Tianjin Nangang Industry Park. During
the year, Dragon Crown and DOW worked closely to gain approval
from relevant Government authorities. It is expected the facilities will
become a strategic distribution hub for DOW within the Bohai Bay
region in Northeast China. The planned site covers a total land area
of 50 hectares, providing a solid base for the business expansion of
the Group in the foreseeable future.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the revenue of the Group
increased by 7.1% to HK$257.8 million from HK$240.7 million
in 2011. The increase was due to the combined effects of the
recognition of the currency gain of HK$5.3 million as a result of the
appreciation in Renminbi (‘RMB”) during the year and the revenue
from new customers of HK$20.7 million. However, the increase was
in part offset by the decrease in jetty revenue from major customers
of HK$5.9 million. The total throughput volume handled by Nanjing
terminal increased to 1,717,700 metric tonnes in 2012 from
1,588,200 metric tonnes in 2011.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2012, gross profit increased to
HK$153.4 million from HK$138.3 million in 2011. Correspondingly,
the gross profit margin increased to 59.5% in 2012 from 57.5% in
2011. The increase in gross profit was primarily due to the combined
effects of the increase in total throughput fee, the recognition of
exchange gain as mentioned above and the stable total operation
costs during the year.

The cost of services provided slightly increased to HK$104.4 million
in 2012 compared with HK$102.4 million in 2011, primarily due to
the recognition of exchange loss of HK$2.1 million as a result of the
appreciation in RMB, the increase in diesel fuel cost of HK$3.5 million
and the decrease in port related costs of HK$3.4 million.
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Other income

Other income increased to HK$22.1 million in 2012 from HK$2.4
million in 2011. The increase was mainly due to the recognition of the
arbitration income from a debtor of HK$16.7 million and the increase
in bank interest income of HK$2.4 million.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses amounted to HK$34.0 million during the
year, compared with HK$32.0 million in 2011. The slight increase
of HK$2.0 million in the year was mainly attributed to the combined
effects of the decrease in listing and professional fee by HK$4.2
million, the decrease of exchange gain by HK$2.9 million, and the
increase of staff costs of HK$3.3 million during the year.

Finance costs

Finance costs for the year dropped to HK$5.7 million from HK$8.2
million in last year. The decrease was due to the repayment of bank
loans.

Share of profits of jointly-controlled entities and associates

The business of the jointly-controlled entities retained stable profits
during the year while the business of the associates was affected by
the temporary construction works of the local government along the
inner river of Tianjin Bin Hai Xin Qu.

Tax expense

The tax expense for the year increased to HK$26.0 million from
HK$5.3 million in the last year because the major subsidiary of the
Group was only entitled to 50% deduction in the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT”) since 1 January 2012 but was entitled to
preferential tax treatment with full tax exemption from PRC EIT in
2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Group has received approximately HK$281.1 million net
proceeds, after deducting underwriting fee and other related
expenses, from listing of the Company’s shares in 2011. The net
proceeds will continue to be used to develop Nanjing phase lll
facilities.

These net proceeds were applied up to the year ended 31
December 2012 in accordance with the proposed applications
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the Prospectus dated 30 May 2011 (the “Prospectus”) and the
Announcement dated 6 February 2013 headed “Change of use of
proceeds”, as follows:

Construction of second cryogenic RS 2 BIER
ethylene tank LIk

Construction of our third jetty AR5 3 BTG ER

Construction of our dedicated railway system 2R EAHKE R4

Construction of nine general purpose EROE—R AR
storage tanks e

General working capital —REEES

The Group held the unutilised net proceeds in short-term deposits or
time deposits with banks in Hong Kong as at 31 December 2012.

EEEWED T

IHFRARRBEZAE

R2011 5 AEBEARERD EHES
ENGREHERMEMHEBEERKR ZME
FIRFREL 2.811 BT - RS IR FRE
4 RN B R A R R = HIRR I
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W
Net proceeds (HK$ million)
FBRIAFH(AEET)

Available Utilised Unutilised
AEA 2EA KENA
133.1 - 133.1
46.6 20.8 25.8
40.0 - 40.0
33.3 33.3 -
28.1 28.1 -
281.1 82.2 198.9
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s total bank loans amounted
to HK$12.0 million (2011: HK$156.4 million), which included
RMB bank loans of RMB9.7 million (2011: RMB85.7 million). The
Group’s gearing ratio (total bank loans to total assets) was 1.2% at
31 December 2012 (2011: 14.3%). The gearing structure was as
follows:

Total bank loans IRITERER
Total assets BERE
Gearing ratio BEAGE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities amounted to HK$314.7 million (2011: HK$451.5 million)
and HK$77.3 million (2011: HK$180.1 million), respectively. As at 31
December 2012, the Group’s current ratio increased to 4.1 (2011:
2.5).

The Group strives to efficiently use its financial resources and adopts
a prudent financial policy in order to maintain a healthy capital ratio
and support its business expansion requirements.

DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The maturity profile of the Group’s bank loans is set out below:

Repayable FEEFRIA
Within one year or on demand —FRSIRER
In the second year EF

Note: All bank loans at 31 December 2012 are denominated in RMB
currency.

BREER THReREEARE

R20129F 12 31 H - AEBERITEREEE
31,2008 8 70(20114F « 1.56418%87T) » B
BARKITOE T2 ARKERITE (2011
F: ARMS57087T) « 20124512 A 31
A A&EEsEEBER(RITEREHER
INEELRE) 721.2% (20114 : 143%) - &
EBEERNT :

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
12,031 166,409
1,042,014 1,092,511
1.2% 14.3%

R2012F12 A31 B + AEEREBEERR
FBEDAA3147TEBIL(20114F « 4515
BAIT) & 7,730 887t (2011 4 : 1.801 (&
HBIT) e R2012F 12 A31 A AEE 27
B E EFEA41(20114F 1 2.5) °
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™

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
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- 11,935

12,031 156,409
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGED ASSETS

Details of pledged assets as at 31 December 2012 are set out in note
26 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY AND INTEREST RATE RISKS

The Group’s cash and bank balances were primarily denominated in
RMB and HK$. Its operating cash inflows and outflows were primarily
denominated in RMB and HK$. During the year, the Group did not
have any material foreign exchange exposure and had not used any
financial instruments for hedging purpose.

As most of the Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in
RMB, the interest rates of these bank borrowings are calculated with
reference to the benchmark interest rate amended by the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC”) from time to time. The Group will closely
monitor the interest rate movements and regularly review its banking
facilities so as to mitigate the expected interest rate risk.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of capital commitments as at 31 December 2012 are set out
in note 34 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 255 full
time employees (2011: 267). The Group provides competitive
remuneration package to retain its employees including salaries,
discretionary bonus, medical insurance, other allowance and
benefits in kind as well as mandatory provident fund schemes for
employees in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for employees in the PRC.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group made no material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries and associated companies.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

While the global economy is still full of uncertainty, we believe
that China’s economic growth will continue to gain momentum in
2018, spurred by the favourable Government policies and strong
consumption demand, providing impetus for the chemical industry.
The demand for liquid chemicals will likely remain robust.

The Group is optimistic about the outlook of the chemical storage
and terminal industry, and will persist with its growth strategy of
expanding its existing terminal storage business and replicating
its success to other coastal regions in China. The expansion plan
of Phase lll at the Nanjing Terminal is progressing well and will
commence operation in 2013. Four general tanks with a total
capacity of 24,000m? will start operating in the second quarter of
2013 with long-term terminal services contracts already secured.
Seven more tanks with a total capacity of 14,000m® are expected
to start operation in the second quarter of 2013. The following table
provides an overview of the new terminal facilities constructed at the
Nanjing terminal that will commence operation in 2013:

Nanjing

Phase lll

facilities

MREE=H

R

Number of tanks RiEsE 9

Storage capacity (m°) BERE (ZFHXK) 18,000

Number of berth JARIEL 1

Berthing capacity (dwt) JERZEE T (B EME) 20,000
Expected investment amount ~ JEzH& B &8

(approximately RMB’000) (HWARBETIT) 104,500

Investment amount up to HE2012F12H31H

31 December 2012 IEZRER

(approximately RMB’000) (HWARBETIT) 64,820

Apart from strengthening infrastructure, the Group will continue

consolidating its presence along the coastal regions of China, with

focus on our ongoing development in the Yangtze River Delta and
Bohai Bay regions. Looking ahead, the Group will seek to expand
and bolster its handling capabilities and customer base, aiming to
become one of the country’s leading integrated terminal service
providers, and creating value for its shareholders.
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New long
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service contract Total
R E

BREEHN st

2 11

20,000 38,000

- 1

- 20,000

29,700 134,200

20,770 85,590
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and
the Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

In the opinion of the directors, throughout the year, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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THE BOARD
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of 4 executive
directors, and 3 independent non-executive directors.

The Board comprises the following directors:
Executive directors:

Mr. NG Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. TING Yian Ann (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHONG Yat Chin

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. LAU Sik Yuen
Mr. LUO Shijie
Mr. ZHU Wujun

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company from time to time pursuant
to the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out
under “Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual
report. None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to ensure a
balance of power and authority. The positions of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are held by Mr. NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann
respectively. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.

Currently, the Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice whereas the Chief Executive
Officer focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive directors representing one-
third of the Board with at least one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experience and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation at Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests, all independent non-executive directors
have made various contributions to the effective direction of the
Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS, APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
Board composition, monitoring the appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election, whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment and that
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term of one year and is subject to retirement
by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Chong Yat Chin, Mr. Luo Shijie and Mr. Zhu Wujun shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election pursuant
to the Company’s Articles of Association.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and
performance. The Board has delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer, and through him, to the senior management the authority
and responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group.

All directors have carried out their duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

Each newly appointed director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Continuing briefing and professional development for directors will
be arranged where necessary.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the following directors
attended seminar(s) and training session(s) arranged by professional
institution(s)/professional firm(s):

Directors Topic

Executive Directors

Mr. NG Wai Man Corporate Governance/Updates

on Laws, rules and regulations

Mr. TING Yian Ann Corporate Governance/Updates

on Laws, rules and regulations

Mr. CHONG Yat Chin Corporate Governance/Updates

on Laws, rules and regulations

Ms. CHAN Wan Ming Corporate Governance/Updates

on Laws, rules and regulations

Mr. KWAN Chun Yuen
(resigned on 17 July 2012)

Accounting and Tax Updates
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Directors Topic

Independent

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen Corporate Governance/Updates

on Laws, rules and regulations

Mr. LUO Shijie Corporate Governance/Updates
on Laws, rules and regulations
Mr. ZHU Wujun Corporate Governance/Updates

on Laws, rules and regulations

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
update/seminar handouts have been provided to the directors for
their reference and studying.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under “Corporate
Information” on page 139.

Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely, Mr.
LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.
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The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a set of nomination
procedures for selection of candidates for directorship of the
Company by making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year under review
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors standing for
election at the Annual General Meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie, Mr. ZHU Wujun, Mr.
NG Wai Man and Mr. TING Yian Ann, the majority of which are
independent non-executive directors.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of all directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year under
review to review and make recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration policy and structure of the Company, and the
remuneration packages of the all directors and senior management
and other related matters.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. LAU Sik Yuen (chairman), Mr. LUO Shijie
and Mr. ZHU Woujun, (including one independent non-executive
director with the appropriate professional qualifications). None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

° To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the external auditors
before submission to the Board

° To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors

° To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year under
review to review interim and annual financial results and reports
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions
and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the executive directors.

The Group’s accounting principles and practices and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meeting of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2012 is set out in the table

below:

Nomination
Name of Director Board Committee
Bspg Ezg REZEE
Mr. Ng Wai Man 3/4 il
REREHE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann 4/4 il
RERRE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin 4/4
HAFRE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming 4/4
F=BRt
Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen 212

(resigned on 17 July 2012)

BRRIEE (M201267 A 17 BEHE)
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen 34 1
AHREE
Mr. Luo Shijie 4/4 1
ey
Mr. Zhu Wujun 4/4 11
REERE

E
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE/ERE
Remuneration Annual General
Committee  Audit Committee Meeting
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the independent non-executive directors without the presence
of executive directors during the year.

Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notice of regular Board meetings is served to all directors at least
14 days before the meeting. For other Board meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting to keep directors apprised of the latest developments
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management where
necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each meeting
and final versions are open for directors’ inspection.
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According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of Association
contain provisions requiring directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving transactions
in which such directors or any of their associates have a material
interest.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 53 to 54.

Where appropriate, a statement will be submitted by the Audit
Committee explaining its recommendation regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditors and the
reasons why the Board has taken a different view from that of the
Audit Committee.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s external auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young,
in respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out below:
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Service Category Fees Paid/Payable (HK$)
AR &R et EAER (B
Audit Services %R
— Annual audit —FEEZ 1,030,000
- Independent auditors letter on continuing — BRI BRI S8
connected transactions J8) 7 A% B 1k 40,000
Non-audit Services IERZERTE
— Review of interim results —EHPHIES 320,000
— Taxation services — RS IRE 90,000
1,480,000

INTERNAL CONTROLS

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company, including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets
and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis through
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues and makes
recommendations.

AEREE IR

REBFEAN EXECEBELEREE
WA ARRI NS RR 2R BEE
St MM B R mBAE T E 2 BRI
BIGRE &R  MRBIEIEERE
o

EE0RBHRBRNZNIEERS U
REBRRZBRERARRBAZEE  WEF
BRBEREZE G D EEETIRA -

ERRESERASEZ AEEIERR
YHERNEREERESTSHRE REHE

N
=3
=

=

Annual Report 2012 FE#HE 33



N

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks, and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by the Board on the
written requisition of any one or more shareholders of the Company,
provided that such shareholder(s) held at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be called for the transaction of any
business specified in the written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company; and shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

There are no statutory provisions granting the right to shareholders
to put forward or move new resolutions at general meetings under
the Cayman Islands Companies Law or the Articles of Association
of the Company. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: 2587 1338

Email: myfarm@dragoncrown.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address, except for
the registered office of the Company, and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee or,
in their absence, other members of the respective committees
and, where applicable, the chairman of the independent Board
committee, are available to answer questions at shareholder
meetings.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.dragoncrown.com, where up-to-date information
and updates on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information and other information are
available for public access.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with
the audited financial statements of Dragon Crown Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
19 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 55 to 137.

The Board has not recommmended the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2012.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK5.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company at the close of business on Tuesday, 21 May 2013. The
proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. This recommendation
has been incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of financial
position.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the past
five financial years, as extracted from audited financial statements,

is set out on page 138. The summary does not form a part of the
audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2012 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group are

set out in note 30 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 59 and 60, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately HK$582.3 million
(2011:HK$545.2 million), of which approximately HK$61.0 million
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In accordance
with Section 34 of the Companies Law, dividend may be paid out
of the amount of approximately HK$431.5 million (2011:HK$431.5
million) of the Company’s share premium account subject to a
solvency test and the provisions of the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the total revenue to the Group’s top five customers
and largest customer accounted for 96.8% and 44.0% of the total
revenue for the year. The cost of services provided by the Group’s
top five suppliers and largest supplier accounted for 50.7% and
26.2% of the total cost of services for the year.

None of the directors or any of their associates or any shareholder
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had beneficial
interests in the Group’s top five suppliers or customers referred to
above.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who were in office during the year and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wai Man (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Yian Ann (Chief executive officer)

Mr. Chong Yat Chin

Ms. Chan Wan Ming

Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen (Resigned on 17 July 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Lau Sik Yuen

Mr. Luo Shijie

Mr. Zhu Wujun

Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Chong Yat Chin, Mr. Luo Shijie and Mr. Zhu Wujun are
subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of its independent non-executive directors and at the date
of this report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chong Yat Chin has entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years which commenced on 1
December 2010 and is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than three months’ written notice.

Mr. Luo Shijie and Mr. Zhu Wujun have renewed service contracts
with the Company for a term of one year effective from 1 December
2011 and will continue thereafter for successive one-year terms until
terminated by not less than one month’s written notice.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and note 35 (Related Party Transactions) to the financial
statements, no director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:
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(i) Interests in the shares of the Company

Personal
Name of directors Interests
EEpA BARELR
Mr. Ng Wai Man (“Mr. NG”) RERAE(REE]D 852,000
Mr. Ting Yian Ann (‘M. TNG)  REZEE([RELE]) -
Mr. Chong Yat Chin (‘Mr. CHONG") 3 HE &£ ([H%£]) 762,000
Ms. Chan Wan Ming (‘Ms. CHAN") BREB 7+ ([fRz L)) 184,000
Notes:
1. All interests of the directors in the shares of the Company were

long positions.

2. Mr. NG is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of

Lirun Limited (“Lirun”) and Sure Port Investments Limited (“Sure
Port”) and therefore is deemed to be interested in a total of
778,902,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun and Sure Port.

3. Mr. TING is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital of
Ansen International Limited (“Ansen”) and therefore is deemed
to be interested in 33,380,000 shares of the Company held by
Ansen.

4. Mr. CHONG is the beneficial owner of all issued share capital of
Silver Coin International Limited (“Silver Coin”) and therefore is
deemed to be interested in 15,950,000 shares of the Company
held by Silver Coin.

N

)  RARAMD ZEE

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
Corporate share capital
Interests Total of the Company
EERRARE
BRTRE
ARER #st BHEIH
778,902,000 779,754,000 70.26%
33,380,0009 33,380,000 3.00%
15,950,000¢ 16,712,000 1.50%
- 184,000 0.01%
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(i) Long positions in the shares of associated corporations of the iy RERABREEEERMD ZFE

Company
Percentage of
existing issued
Name of Number of shares share capital
associated held in associated of the associated
Name of directors corporation Capacity corporation corporations
REEZEERE
EENR BELEER 54 REBEZEMFERS CBRITREAEIE
Mr. NG Lirun Beneficial owner 40 100%
RoEE b EnEEA
Mr. NG Sure Port Beneficial owner 10 100%
RoLE B IIE EnEEA
Mr. TING Ansen Beneficial owner 20 100%
FRSTAE EnEEA
Mr. CHONG Silver Coin Beneficial owner 30 100%
HEE EnEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the B EtHEEEN - 2012912 A31H - K

directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests or RNAEERETETHRABWERERRRH
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of HEREBAB 2 EARG - BERGOHES
the Company or any of its associated corporations. PR E A EmSUARE o

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL FERRZESRRE
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, so far as is known to the directors of MR2012F 12 A31 8  AARRIESAA
the Company, the following persons or corporations (other than THIATSEE (WIRATESZHEEIT
directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests and BAB)RAERR 2R RAB@RD R HEE
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as RIS 5 M B E 1515 25 336 1B R 8 B RE
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the fmAERg ARG 2 Em AR IT ¢

SFO or as otherwise naotified to the Company were as follows:

=
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Number of shares
or underlying shares
held in the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

REREEE 514

Lirun Beneficial owner®

Vb EREBEAC

Notes:

1. The interest of the substantial shareholder in the shares of the

Company was long position.
2. Mr. NG is the beneficial owner of all the issued share capital

of Lirun and therefore is deemed to be interested in a total of
762,402,000 shares of the Company held by Lirun.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Directors
of the Company are not aware of any other persons (other than the
directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures” above) who held any
interests or short positions in the shares, or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible participants
(including employees, executives or officers, directors including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors,
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long
term growth of the Group and to enable the Company to attract and
retain high calibre employees. During the year, no share options were
granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. There were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2012.

Approximate
percentage of
existing issued
share capital

of the Company
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of the executive directors (collectively the “Covenantors”) have
entered into a Deed of Non-Competition in favour of the Company
(on behalf of itself and the Group) dated 23 May 2011 (the “Deed”).
Pursuant to the Deed, each of the Covenantors shall procure that
their respective associates shall not directly or indirectly engage in
any business in competition with the existing business activity of
the Group. Relevant information on the Deed was disclosed in the
Prospectus in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company has received confirmations from the Covenantors
of their compliance with the terms of the Deed. The Covenantors
declared that they have fully complied with the Deed for the year
ended 31 December 2012. The independent non-executive
directors have reviewed on the confirmations from the Covenantors
and concluded that the Deed has been complied with and has been
effectively enforced.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement and/or independent shareholders’ approval
requirement for the following transactions subject to (i) the directors
confirming that those transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and (i) the proposed
annual caps for those transactions are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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TREIZFFRRFEIZN2012F 2
FELRIERR 5%

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual transaction
amounts of those non-exempt continuing transactions in 2012:

Annual cap Actual transaction amount
ERIR ERRSE
Approx. Approx.
e o
Connected transactions Connected person (RMB'000) (HK$'000) (RMB’000) (HK$'000)
BEXS BEAT (AREFT) (FEL)  (ARETR) (F&m)
(o) Related Party Terminal Service BEALEARS S
Agreements
() Phenol Storage Agreement DC Investments
ABERDE EMCIER 2,880 3,629 2,880 3,541
(i) DC Investments DC Investments
Storage Agreement
M IER GRS EMCIER 2,440 2,805 1,847 2,271
5,320 6,434 4,727 5812
(B)  Pipe Racks Agreements ERE
() Pipe Racks Services Nanjing Chemical Industry
Agreements Park Company Limited
ERRBRE (‘Nanjing CIPC")
AR EIERERAT
(@RCPc)) 8,400 9,655 7,791 9,578
(i) Security Services Nanjing Chemical Industry
Agreement Park Public Services Company
Re BB HE Limited (‘Nanjing CIPPS)
AREIXERNRERER
BARR(TERCPPS) 799 919 778 957
9,199 10,574 8,569 10,535
(G Office Lease Agreement DC Investments
BREHEERR EMCIER 1,494 1,404
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Related Party Terminal Service Agreements

The Group entered into two related party terminal service
agreements, namely Phenol Storage Agreement and DC
Investments Storage Agreement (collectively the “Related
Party Terminal Service Agreements”), which constitute
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Listing Rules 14A.25 and 14A.26, the transactions
under the Related Party Terminal Service Agreements and
the annual cap amounts of the transactions thereunder have
been aggregated. Details of the Related Party Terminal Service
Agreements are as follows:

(@ Phenol Storage Agreement

On 19 April 2011, the Group and DC Investments
entered into the Phenol storage agreement (the “Phenol
Storage Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group
agreed to provide DC Investments with terminal and
storage services for Phenol at the Nanjing terminal. The
term of the Phenol Storage Agreement is for the period
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2012.

On 3 December 2012, Nanjing Dragon Crown and DC
Investments entered into the Renewed Phenol Storage
Agreement pursuant to which Nanjing Dragon Crown
agreed to provide DC Investments with terminal and
storage services for Phenol at the terminal of Nanjing
Dragon Crown. The term of the Renewed Phenol
Storage Agreement is for the period from 1 January 2013
to 31 December 2015.

The fees for the services provided are principally
determined by () the storage capacity of the tank to
be provided by the Group to DC Investments; and (i)
the duration for the storage of Phenol at the Group’s
terminal in Nanjing with reference to the market price.
The terms offered by DC Investments to Nanjing Dragon
Crown are no less favourable than those offered by
other Independent Third Parties in the ordinary course of
business.
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(o) DC Investments Storage Agreement

On 1 January 2010, Ningbo Ningxiang and DC
Investments entered into a storage agreement (the “DC
Investments Storage Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide DC Investments
with terminal and storage services for Phenol at the
Ningbo terminal. The term of the DC Investments
Storage Agreement is for the period from 1 January 2010
to 31 December 2012.

On 3 December 2012, Ningbo Ningxiang and Ningbo
DC, the wholly-owned subsidiary of DC Investments,
entered into the Ningbo Storage Agreement, pursuant
to which Ningbo Ningxiang agreed to provide Ningbo
DC with terminal and storage services at the Group’s
terminal in Ningbo. The term of the Ningbo Storage
Agreement is for the period of three years from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2015.

The fees for the services provided are principally
determined by (i) the quantity of the liquid chemical
products handled by the Group; and (i) the period for the
storage of the liquid chemical products at the terminal
with reference to the market price. The terms offered by
Ningbo DC to Ningbo Ningxiang are no less favourable
than those offered by other Independent Third Parties in
the ordinary course of business.

(B) Pipe Racks Agreements

The Group entered into the Pipe Racks Services Agreements
and the Security Services Agreement (collectively the “Pipe
Racks Agreements”), which constitute continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing
Rules 14A.25 and 14A.26, the transactions under the Pipe
Racks Agreements and the annual cap amounts of the
transactions thereunder have been aggregated.
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In March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPC entered into
a pipe racks services agreement (the “Pipe Racks Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease
to the Group the pipe racks for the Acetic Acid pipelines and
Methanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Pipe Racks Services Agreement was supplemented by (i) a
supplemental agreement dated 28 September 2007, pursuant
to which Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe
racks for the Vinyl Acetate and Acetic Anhydride pipelines
at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (ii) a supplemental
agreement dated 12 October 2007, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the
Ethylene pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park; (iii) a
supplemental agreement dated June 2008, pursuant to which
Nanjing CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for
the sub-pipelines of the Group connecting to the pipelines of
two customers of Celanese; and (iv) the Fourth Supplemental
Pipe Racks Agreement entered into between the Group and
Nanjing CIPC on 3 December 2012, pursuant to which Nanjing
CIPC agreed to lease to the Group the pipe racks for the Ethyl
Acetate and Ethanol pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park. The Fourth Supplemental Pipe Racks Agreement shall
be with effect from 1 March 2013. The Pipe Racks Services
Agreements are for a period of 15 years from 15 March 2007
to 14 March 2022 and can be extended for a further five
years upon expiry unless the parties thereto terminate the
Pipe Racks Services Agreements. The fees payable for the
pipe racks rental by the Group are principally determined by
the occupied area of pipelines in the pipe racks rented to the
Group by Nanjing CIPC subject to adjustment with reference
to bank lending interest rate, consumer price index, inflation,
etc.. The terms offered by Nanjing CIPC to the Group are no
less favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.
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In addition, in March 2007, the Group and Nanjing CIPPS,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Nanjing CIPC, entered into
a security services agreement (the “Security Services
Agreement”), pursuant to which Nanjing CIPPS agreed to
provide security services for the pipe racks rented by the
Group at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. Nanjing CIPPS
shall provide security, patrol and monitor services of the
Group’s pipelines at the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park. The
Security Services Agreement is for a period of 15 years from
15 March 2007 to 14 March 2022 and can be extended for
a further five years upon expiry unless the parties thereto
terminate the Security Services Agreements.

The fees payable for the security services by the Group under
the Security Services Agreement are principally determined by
the length of pipe racks at a maximum of 10 kilometres which
requires the provision of security services by Nanjing CIPPS.
The terms offered by Nanjing CIPPS to the Group are no less
favourable than those offered by other Independent Third
Parties in the ordinary course of business.

Office Lease Agreement

On 12 November 2010, an office lease agreement (the “Office
Lease Agreement”) was entered into between DC Investments
as landlord and the Group as tenant in respect of the premises
located at Unit No. 3 on the 18th Floor of Convention Plaza,
Office Tower, No. 1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong, with a gross
floor area of approximately 2,227 square feet for a term
commencing on 1 August 2010 and expiring on 31 December
2012. The property is currently occupied by the Group for
office use.

The office Lease Agreement was renewed on 3 December
2012 for a fixed term of three years from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015.

The annual rent payable to DC Investments was determined at
arm'’s length negotiation between the parties to the Renewed
Office Lease Agreement with reference to the valuation made
by the independent property valuer of the Company, Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, and the previous
transaction between the parties.
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The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 35 to
the financial statements.
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PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors as at the latest practicable

date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained
the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as

auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ng Wai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DRAGON CROWN GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dragon
Crown Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 137, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

12 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement \\
mEWER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE2012F 12 A31 HILFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE TR FHET
REVENUE 'ON 6 257,770 240,675
Cost of services provided IR AR A AR (104,361) (102,399)
Gross profit EF 153,409 138,276
Other income HAA 7 22,057 2,351
Administrative expenses TE R (33,977) (31,988)
Finance costs [ELE= VDN 8 (5,722) (8,220)
Share of profits and losses of: P a2 B 1A
Associates il /NG| (1,391) 2177
Jointly-controlled entities HENEHIE S 5,555 5,961
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE A=A 9 139,931 108,557
Tax Big 12 (25,991) (5,319)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 113,940 103,238
Attributable to: PATR AL FEAG -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZE DN 13 99,100 90,076
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR 14,840 13,162
113,940 103,238
EARNINGS PER SHARE RATEBA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEREREF GEA)
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(HK cents)
Basic BN 15 8.93 9.15
Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 14 to BANFEREZRENFERBERMBHRERWE

the financial statements.

140
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
REtERER

Year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012F 12 A31 HILFE

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FERx FHIT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERRF 113,940 103,238
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  HfhZEIKA
Share of other comprehensive FE(RHEE N AR
income of associates: Hih 2 ERA
Changes in exchange reserve b i # E) 149 1,191
Share of other comprehensive FEfh LRI HIE R
income of jointly-controlled entities: HAZEBA
Changes in exchange reserve FEH R EEE) 201 959
Exchange differences on translation of HREBINETEHY
foreign operations N =58 7,364 24,758
7,714 26,908
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEREME
FOR THE YEAR W A4 %8 121,654 130,146
Attributable to: AT ALREL
Owners of the Company RARER A 13 106,200 114,411
Non-controlling interests eI 15,454 15,735
121,654 130,146
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B ISR AR

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Goodwill

Investments in associates

Investments in jointly-controlled entities
Prepayments

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Notes
MosE
FRBEE
I =PV 16
Attt AEE 17
EES 18
RE &N RIHIRE 20
REEEIEHIE RIS E 21
TETR 23
BEFIBE = 27
IERBEELE
RBEE
FE
FEUTAR X 22
AR ek
E b el FRIE 23
ReRREEEY 24
MEVEERE
REBAE
HittpE s REsrE8Aa 25
ETREERITER 26
JESEEIE
mEEERE
RBEEFE
BEERRBER
ERBES
HEIRITER 26
BERIBEE o7
ERFEFERE
BEZEE

AN
=]

N

31 December 2012
20124 12 A31H

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
635,623 546,547
42,340 42,975
1,210 1,210
19,423 22,973
26,878 27,313
403 -
1,452 -
727,329 641,018
4,448 4,152
40,114 39,857
4,408 4,241
265,715 403,243
314,685 451,493
58,871 35,572
12,031 144,474
6,442 54
77,344 180,100
237,341 271,393
964,670 912,411
- 11,935
6,061 5,663
6,061 17,598
958,609 894,813

-
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e Mg R R
31 December 2012
2012412 A 31 H

EQUITY R

Equity attributable to owners RATEBA
of the Company PE{E R

Issued share capital BEITRA

Reserves (G

Proposed final dividends EEREARE

Non-controlling interests FEIER

TOTAL EQUITY RERAE

Ng Wai Man

RER

Director

2

Notes

B

m

28
30
14

Ting Yian Ann
RE=
Director

EZ

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx TET
110,966 110,966
728,391 683,375
61,031 55,483
900,388 849,824
58,221 44,989
958,609 894,813
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity \
MERREER
Year ended 31 December 2012
BE 2012412 A31 BILER

Attributable to owners of the Company

MiAREARLRR
Exchange Proposed
Issued Reserve fluctuation final Non-
capital Share  funds*  Capital  resee  Refained dividends controlling Total

BT premium BF  resene  EFR®  pofts  BERE Told  interests equiy
Bh RBEE B ERRR Bf  RER ke i fiRER  ERUE
Note HKS000  HKSO000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
It TR A TR T T A TR TR TR AR
(note 30(alil) (note:30(al) (note 30l
(2 S0 (52 30(al) (S S0(ali)

At January 2012 R012E1R1A 10966 431,509 1,12 2,05 80,169 141,019 5483 849,64 4989 804813
Proft forte year Eiad - - - - - 00 - B0 UM 1130
Othercomprenensiv ncome o e year: ERERRENA:
Stre of changes nexchange Y
Tesanz0f assciies EXfERY - - - - 1 - - 149 - 1
St of chenges nexchange FlRIEsER
resne of ot conolefenes HER e - - - - o - - o - o
Exchenge iferences on fansaion of Ly
foeign aperations EizE - - - - BT - - 6 614 T34
Tota comprfiensive income forthe year EREANAEE - - - - T4 %400 - 106200 5454 12165
Aoproprieon o stautoryresene A5ieh - - 1% - - (14 - (159 15 -
Fireldidens pad EffAERE - - - - - - [y () S
Dhicends decred onon-controlingmerests S 2 FEARER 28 - - - - - - - - (1B (1358))
Captal conrbuton fom non-conrolig teests ~ F2RERHE - - - - . . . S | 1 O K
Proposed e diicends EardRe 14 - - - - S 13 I 1 - - -
At 31 December 2012 R02E12431H 10966 41509"  908% 2208 41269 17T09™ 61031 900388 8221 956,609
* The reserve funds comprise the share of reserves of associates and * ZEREE S BERME S AR KR
jointly-controlled entities of HK$4,090,000 (2011: HK$3,958,000). i Z 88 A9 £ 154,090,000 7T (2011 & -
3,958,000 7T)
** These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of 53 ZEREREEGAVBERARAD
HK$728,391,000 (2011: HK$683,375,000) in the consolidated 4R A 728,391,000 7T (2011 4F -
statement of financial position. 683,375,000/ 7T)

-
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mEERBEK
Year ended 31 December 2012
BE20124612 A31 HILEE

Attioutable fo owners of the Company

FATREARGER
Exchange Proposed
Issued Resene flctuation fing Non-
captal Share finds'  Captd  resene  Refaed  cividends cortroling Total
BT premium B eew  EER® o BERE Tod  ileests  eqiy
BE RoEE B EAER B RO it &y HHER  EegE
Nots  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOWD
W fér T TEr TR TRt TR TR TR TR TEn
(note 30(af) (note S0(a) - (ot 30
(Ea0i) (552 0a) (W a0
A1y 201 ROt 1718 Boouwm 6% 2% B 0% W BN R
Protfor e year g - - - - -0 note 131 10328
Othercomprehensive ncome o e year: EREf2EMA -
S of changes nexchange e AN ]
resenz 0f associaes EiRY - - - - 1,101 - i
Shre o changes nexchange FltxREHEE
reserve of ot conroled entes HIER R - - - - %9 %9 - %9
Exchenge ifevences on ansation RERNZR
of foreign opertons ERZE - - - - Qi N\ 2 U
Tota comprefensive ncome forte year EnREhEE - - - - U N e 157% 130146
Cepalisaon ste Rl %) QAT (41 - - - - -
[ssue of shares Hhh 2 28466 264,662 - - 33,128 - 3818
Shareissue expenses HikhER - (55 - - - - (15509 - (155
Approprieon o stautoryresene AEhERE - - 1MW - - (13 1% -
Dhicends decred onon-controlingmerests S 2SR ER 22 - - - - - - - (1624 (16284
Proposed el chidends e i - - - - - (B 5 - - -
At 31 Decemoer 2011 ROERANA H0%6 431500 76t 2%2% 801697 141019%  Go483  BA96M MO0 804813

BN
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes
FiaE
CASH FLOWS FROM REFPHELE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZRERE
Profit before tax FRIERT R A
Adjustments for: AT ZIEFE -
Finance costs BhE AR 8
Bank interest income RITHEUA 7
Depreciation e
Amortisation of prepaid TR T
land lease payments THSEH 9
Loss on disposal of items of HEWZE - BE
property, plant and equipment XA E BE 9
Share of profits and losses of: FEMR T B 2 s F) R &5 148
Associates /N
Jointly-controlled entities HEESIE S
Increase in inventories FE
Decrease in accounts receivable FEWER TR A
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERFR -~ e REAM WIS
deposits and other receivables D, (35hn)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H At T FRIB X FEET
and accruals BREMORD)
Cash generated from operations KERTSIRS
Tax paid E#HFIE
Net cash flows from operating activities A& & EEFTEIR &R EF5E
CASH FLOWS FROM REFZDELE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ZRERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BE
plant and equipment HiBIEE
Interest received BEUYFIE
Dividends received BB
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEBFE(FTA)
investing activities e mEFEE

= LB
mEREREXR
Year ended 31 December 2012
BE2012F 12 A31 HILFE

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TAET
139,931 108,557
5,722 8,220
(3,497) (1,109)
35,317 34,203
972 952

64 199
1,391 2,177)
(5,555) (5,961)
174,345 142,884
(259) (1,580)

66 7,318

(554) 1,350
2,228 (5,700)
175,826 144,272
(20,766) (7,124)
155,060 137,148
(95,794) (5,908)
3,497 1,109
8,499 8,961
(83,798) 4,162

-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A e~ =1
GEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2012
BZE2012F 12 A31 HILFE

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution from
non-controlling interests

Arising from initial public offering
and over-allotment

Decrease in an amount due to
the former ultimate holding company

Repayment of bank loans

New bank loans

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests

Interest paid

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Note
B &E

BMEEHELEZ
BERE
IR RN E

KEBRARBE
N FRREAC A
e A S AR PE AR X ]
R
EERITER
B IRITEN
EfAE
ST FIRERX
R BB
EfFE
BERBAE(FTA)
REREFE
RERBEEEY
&, Ord) B
REPZRE
KR ZHED
FEE & B &
MR E

RERZRE
RBREEEY

RERREEEY

EERD AT

RERZBEE R

REeEEY 24

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FABT
11,178 -
— 302,294

= (249)
(144,132) (85,817)
- 18,064
(55,483) -
(16,225) (11,630)
(5,722) (8,220)
(210,384) 214,442
(139,122) 355,752
403,243 46,611
1,594 880
265,715 403,243
265,715 403,243
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accruals

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued share capital
Reserves

Proposed final dividends

TOTAL EQUITY

Ng Wai Man
RER
Director

EF

Statement of Financial Position

B AR R R
31 December 2012
20124 12 A31H

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MosE FHT T

FRBEE

RHTE A RIMRE 19 339,251 256,423

IEREEELE 339,251 256,423

REBEE

AR e K

E e Y GRIE 23 208,774 111,769

HEeERREEEY 24 158,114 293,980

MENEELEE 366,888 405,749

REBAE

HEEARIBEREFTER 25 12,909 6,044

mEN B EEE 12,909 6,044

REEEFE 353,979 399,705

EEFE 693,230 656,128

R

BEITRA 28 110,966 110,966

(Gt 30(b) 521,233 489,679

BN R 14 61,031 55,483

ERAE 693,230 656,128

Ting Yian Ann
RE=
Director

EF

N

-
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MR

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on 16 July 2010 as an
exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of
its principle place of business in Hong Kong is Unit No.3, 18th
Floor, Convention Plaza, Office Tower, No.1 Harbour Road,
Hong Kong. The Group is principally engaged in terminal
storage and handling of liquid chemicals.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Lirun Limited, which is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.1

LFEH

RNRRIRER S8 SR FER 2010
F7TH16EEMK L AERRER
NE] o AR A M= AR Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands ° KRR EZLE
WEL N BB EE1RERES M)
NRE1BEIE - AEETFERER
B BEmiS T REIEERR -

Kﬂj%%uu/‘t—ﬁ ZXQjFZk* rL/_\
ARNEBERRESTMK LA
REEQRIEERAR

RREE
ZEVBRRIIBBEEEGAE

Bz BV BREER ([ FEHB
BEEA]) (BEMBEEMHRE

A BRI EE G
AI)) R2E)  BEAREHRAL

BREREMEPIZ HERE MRS © %
EMBHRIIREL KA EPIREL -
B BEAN MBBBRUETE
5 MAABSREAREREOTE
IT o
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All intra-
group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are
eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is attributed to
the non-controlling interest even if it results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the income statement. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the income statement or retained
profits, as appropriate.

2.1

B RS SRR M

WREEE)

FREVBBERBEARFTREMEA
Al (5 [ AR ]) RBIE20124 12
A 31 BIEFE 2Rk - fMEAR
2 B R R Ty B 7R R pA AR R ER ¥ B
FARAEE — R ETEORBR -
M A El < & T8 Wi B Bl (B
SEEREGIE 2B )BT UGS -
BRZEEHIERIERIFERE © AT
BEEERRRFELEH  RHUAKEESE
EARARHRXIEENREREER
IREHENIRE IR B RS -

EeELERER:  MBARZ2
HWARR S RBN IR

RIETE AR R EEDS 28 (W&
KEZGIRE) N ARRIERERR S -

fied AN 6= B 5k 5 — PR Y B8 8 &) 22 4%
% ReRIER()ZMBARIZE
Z=(BREE) RaE (i) EIFHzER
Em s REE: R(i)RNEREAAR
Y RETE N ZRE 0 WHERR () © WAKE
MARME (i) EMNERERENDA
18+ R i) st A E RO EFIBRE 28R
HEE o TR EMEE WA D R
MAREERIEES - DETBEREH
DREWARIRE R ©
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MR

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1
Amendments

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKAS 12
Amendments

The adoption of the revised HKFRSs has had no significant

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

financial effect on these financial statements.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

BB RSB REE

AEEDRAFEIMBHREREREN
AT RERT BB RELER :

BEMGHmE BEUBREEFA

RERIE 1% SEARAZENH

SCHEN) HEER - RESE
B 5E B AN E
HIBIE AR 2 (5T

BEMGHmE BEMBREENFET
RERIE 7 e TA : KFE—
SCHEN) THEESBELE

H

BEest £l BEGHERF 125
F125% B —EREFR -
(7T ) EIEREZE 2 ER]

RNEERT B BN B REERL R
ZEVWBRREETMNERYBY
@,

ERFERREXDEEMBEES
#A1

AEBERZEVHRERPLERER
LA B R R AR RV 3T AT AR IERT
BB BRELER
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 EEMEMNRESMNEEMERE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) H0 (£)

HKFRS 1 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time EEVBEREER  FEIMKREER
Amendments Adoption of Hong Kong Financial EREACHEN) ERE =t

Reporting Standards — Government BB L
Loans? Al —BTEH 2
EHE
HKFRS 7 Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial BV MEER  FEIKREER
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting ENEACHEN) FBIRLHITA -
Financial Assets and Financial E— R
Liabilities? EERTHERE
pa-HE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BAVBWELN 2FTA*
F9%

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements? BEEVBRELED  FAHEHA?
F10%5%

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? ERVBRELER  HEZH?
F115%

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities? BRMBHRELN RAMELEZ #m
F12% ZHEE?

HKFRS 10, Amendments to HKFRS 10, BERUBHRELER BEMBRELER
HKFRS 11 HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 - F10%  BBHM  F£105%%  FEY
and HKFRS 12 Transition Guidance? TERE%ERSE 11 TSR 2R 55 11
Amendments 5 R B SR SRR BB ISR

SREAE125 (5 HFERFE 125
HEN, HEEIES 2 1BF]?

HKFRS 10, Amendments to HKFRS 10, BEMIEHELE BEYBRELE
HKFRS 12 and HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) AFE105% - & BIF10% - &
HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment Entities® Vo TR oS A PEEA TSR 45
Amendments A2 RE  BIE125% Kk

BETEAE BB TR

275 (20114F) 582757 (2011

(EETA) F)-KEHER
pa-HN
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MR

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1

Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32

Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual
Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income'

Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation

— Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in June 20122

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015

CEMEMNKRENNEEMBERE

R (&)

ERPHRELED AnEER
£135%

BB EENE 15 FEGTEE

CHEY) SABHA 2
S| —E 2 EH
AEHzZ52
CHE
B SR 1E 8 #5712
1958 (2011 4F)
BB GEER BB
2758 (2011 4F)
BB GEER RBERFRAE
F28H(2011F) LEIZRE?
B e ER B G ERE 32
FRFUETA)  FeHTA -
e gk
BERHEE
pdHE

B8 (BIBRMBRE ZEXELEEERL
REZEE)-%  AEAA?
205

2009F 22011 F# F201246 AEh%

B2 FRIGE ETARBRBR
HERIZIEFT?

L H201257 A1 Bk 2 4 RB 2 FE
HAR AR

2 201351 A1 Az &Rt 2 F/E
HAfE A2

g B20145F1 A1 Bk 2 4 RB 2 FE
HAR AR

4 E2015%1 A1 Bk 2 BRIAZ FE
AR A= 3K
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measures the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

B RS SRR M

23 ERMERKRENNETRMERS

R (&)

AEEB L SRS RGETE
B BWEEANENTEAZEE -
ARE B H R Be e 2 F 5 s 2R
SEHELERE NP BIRE EMA
BEAYE -

FEEHBREE

EBEHREE

EBEHTIABEEARR - EEEN
BRWERAHZAREFE 22N
BERASEMEREENRERYZ
DRME - AEERREETRTEE A
AN B ERANEESREIIETT
EHIEPTETT Z BRA a2 A -
EXBAMHT  AREEEZERTUR
AEARWETT A BRI B EFENE
B FFENMRWES BREHES
AT EIEE I - W THA A
R - RRREIRLL A D HEBAFE
BE - FFIERERZ — Y EMR D T)
BRREE - WEHEBRAREL
5 AR

EAREREEEHE - BREA
KRR - POURRS B MRS IR R A
B FEERENSRAERS
0 SMERIEAHDRRET - KF
BRI £ KR B IRA T
TR -

-
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the
contingent consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39,
it is measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the income
statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

FEEHBREE(E)

EBEHREE(E)

HEEAHIREEETT KRB
RN YR BB AR EEHA
B MAELZWaEENMEETD
R o

AU 7T 1 T ERRA A AR E RN
WEB R AR EER - DEREE
FEEEBERIAYNATEGTE
A58 39S BB O KA R BR AN EFT
& MBI EZEPAINIEEEREK
EREAMEERANES - fHAKE
W AHFEE LG LERIE 95 H A -
AIEIEE R B RS LA E -
Wy B AEENHARENSERNT
B BHREERN RN -

BERVIZKAGTE - IEBEAR
B - RIS AR E TR
FANRWED REN D2 ERE
B 260 B2 AT W 8 mT 28k R B VB e P
EREMZRE - MREREMER R
SRIENFAKBEEFENAAE
REHEREZRH NS R AERS
% (B B Wt

RAATERE « EBRER AT R
FUREEIER 2 - BASFIERE
A BEEHRENBERREBTR
BREEA Al gL R ER @ RIS AR
EITRE - NEBEMR12 A31 BH#ELT
BB ZFEREBEAR - BETRER
2 ERASEEEMEESBERER
BB TZEEMNNEMMAR - FHE
BEHmBEANBEEEBAZBES
Fe = FEHA R A OF 2 A &9 155 R ik s R
EamAEEZ AR SEEENSIE
SELEEMNAER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the disposed operation and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that are
not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

B RS SRR M

FEEHBREE (2

EBEHREE(E)

BB B A EEERE NG S E
EBA (IR EEBMAR) HIATIK
EleFEET - ERGELEENM (IR
SEEBEMAR) &R E S FEER
BRE SRR - REEEE TUARR -
EREERRNBEBETSRARR
HAREI#E ] o

HEEESPKRERSELEM (KA
TELEMAR) O — B0 Mz EL
MEORBELE  IEEEMLE
EBH MRS EIRR - BEPTHE X
AN EE ST AZEBHREE
EZIBERATHENEE - TIREM
EXTNREEERRSELENUN
REMBRETHE -

o) NG|

B8 X B YA 2 B R B K S R
HU G R EERRAREER BB
ERAMEH AR

M AR EBEAB KR ERRE R
REFTARRB Z Wk - WEREE
BB RERFESREOBEAFEIEL
EZARFEMBRARZRE - IR
AR fRTRE B IR AR -
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets
are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses
from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion
to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@ a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or
indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) anassociate, if the Group does not have unilateral or joint
control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not less
than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and is
in a position to exercise significant influence over the joint
venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and
has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise
significant influence over, the joint venture.

FEEHBREE(E)
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of associates is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is subject to
joint control, resulting in none of the participating parties having
unilateral control over the economic activity of the jointly-
controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results and reserves of its jointly-controlled
entities are included in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
jointly-controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the jointly-controlled entities, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of jointly-controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s
investments in jointly-controlled entities.
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PR AR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset or
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

3.17%-19%
Motor vehicles 19%

Buildings and structures

Office equipment 19%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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PR AR MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the period
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the infrastructure of a
terminal under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rental payables under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the income statement

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the

straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets of the Group in the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables. The Group determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the income statement. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the income statement in finance costs for loans
and in other operating expenses for receivables.
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PR AR MR

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions

that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not

included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (that is, the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or decreased
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to the income statement.
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PR AR MR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the assets. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to pay.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group’s financial liabilities which include other payables
and accruals, and interest-bearing bank loans are initially
stated at fair value and net of directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is currently an enforceable legal right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an

integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Inventories

Inventories represent consumables, tools and parts for use in
the operation, and are stated at cost. Cost is determined on

the first-in, first-out basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement
is recognised outside the income statement, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the regions in which

the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled entities, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and a jointly-controlled entities, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the

same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ from the rendering of services, when the services have
been rendered;

(o) rental income, on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset; and

(d) income from arbitration, when the legal rights has been
established and collectability is reasonably ascertained.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the Company’s functional currency. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entities are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of those entities comprising the Group in which
their functional currencies are currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollar are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of those entities which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

A RS SRR M

FEEHBREE (2

s (&)

ETEIMBAR - BEARRAR
EHEBHINEEREWIET - K]
FHR - ZFEENEERARSHE
IR E R E KB DR R AR
2HE - BEWERRFENINE
FHEXBERET - R ELNE
REFREMEE WA R RataT
ABLKBEE SHEBIER
B AR EBINEBEENE DS
et BB R U E ok P R

BT ERMEMERME + BTSN
IR RN AEEE T EEN
ReRneRReneEEsE HHER
HRBRARRRINZ2HREE - BINLE
AARBERSHANELENRBRES
BRI E A NN T I K0 E R

e

FI \

BABAL

ETIBERT  BEAOSERA/AS
B ROREE AL

@ BETA—BALTIZALZ
FEREEYRERKE @ MZAL :

() ¥R AR E
iy HAEBEHERFTE =k

(i) RALEHAEEERA
WEEEEASR -

-

Annual Report 2012 FE#HE 87



/ Notes to Financial Statements
g s By

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHRREBEZ)

POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued) BB AT (2)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b)) BFEARERE MAENATE
conditions applies: 1%
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () Z%EBHEASEBR-—%
group; s d=FNG|
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) “EBARS HEMNEKE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow NEREERFE(HZE
subsidiary of the other entity); Al FAREKE

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (iii)
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (iv)
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v)
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi)
person identified in (a); and

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (vii)
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting or
in the case of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), by the board of directors. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of each reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which has the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of accounts receivable

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a receivable is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment, the Group considers factors such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount
and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics.

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated impairment of
accounts receivable arising from the inability of its debtors to
make the required payments. The Group makes its estimates
based on the ageing of its trade receivable balances, debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical write-
off experience. If the financial condition of its debtors was to
deteriorate so that the actual impairment loss might be higher
than expected, the Group would be required to revise the basis
of making the allowance.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period, are described below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The cost of property, plant and equipment is depreciated on
the straight-line basis over the property, plant and equipment’s
estimated economic useful lives. Management estimates the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be five to
thirty years. Changes in the expected level of usage and/or
the period over which future economic benefits are generated
could impact the economic useful lives of the assets and,
therefore, future depreciation charges could be revised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2012 was
HK$1,210,000 (2011: HK1,210,000). Further details are given
in note 18 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Significant management judgements on the future tax
treatment of certain transactions are required in determining
income tax provisions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set up
accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

No separate analysis of segment information is presented by
the Group as over 90% of the Group’s revenue, results and
assets are related to the terminal storage and handling of liquid
chemicals business in Mainland China.

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below:

Customer A =EA
Customer B ZF B
Customer C EFC
REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of services rendered for terminal storage
and the handling of liquid chemicals during the year, after
business tax and value-added tax.
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2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
113,517 112,920
92,170 101,513
22,081 21,592
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7. OTHER INCOME 7. HKA
An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follows: REEHMPASTAT
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Bank interest income SRITA B U A 3,497 1,109
Gross rental income WA LREE 501 470
Income from arbitration* R E R EI A * 16,659 =
Others Hith 1,400 772
22,057 2,351
* The balance represented the amount received, net of * ZERREIEHE2012F 12 A31 H 1E
expense, in relation to an arbitration case against a FEABYEEARENPREMG
debtor during the year ended 31 December 2012. The B EWEIE (HBRHEX) - FAER
total amount awarded was RMB18,583,000 (equivalent to FRIBAEEE A AR #18,583,000 7T (48
HK$22,846,000). The outstanding amount will be settled by £1822,846,00077T) © [MIARZ T
30 June 2018, B &7 2013 4F 6 A 30 B AI{E)E °
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEEE
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Interest on bank loans wholly ARAFNEHER
repayable within five years IRITEREF A 5,722 8,220

BN
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Depreciation
Amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments
Minimum lease payments
under operating leases of
office premises and pipe racks
Auditors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration
Staff costs (excluding
directors’ remuneration):
Wages, salaries and other benefits
Pension scheme contributions

Gross rental income
Less: Outgoings

Loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange differences, net

9.
Notes
FtaE
e 16
B LS
B 55 17
MAEYHER
BRREETRL
M ERER K
IZE A &
SEHE 10
BITRA (PEFE
EE R
IE - FrekEMmET
RIS EH B TK
el ABEE 7

EET

HEME - BEK
RIBEER BB
PELERE - FE

A RS SRR M

Ex#RaRF
AEBOBRBAVENE MG, (5
A
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAxT
35,317 34,203
972 952
11,096 11,281
1,030 985
7,560 8,015
17,027 13,207
3,164 2,723
20,191 15,930
(501) (470)
25 23
(476) (447)
64 199
(270) (3,198)

.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. ESE&
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BIERBHBMARSFEBERARZES L
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock TR B R EB A T EFIE 161 IEFTiR
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Section 161 of the Hong BENFNEEMSOT :

Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TExT FHET
Fees e
— Executive directors —HITES - -
— Independent non-executive directors — B IITEE 540 540
Other emoluments of executive directors: #1172 = H b
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYREF 6,985 7,439
Pension scheme contributions RIS BN 35 36
7,560 8,015
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions remuneration
M 28 Bike
e  REWEF SRR )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TET TET TET
2012
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREHE - 935 - 935
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BEZit - 3,000 - 3,000
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAEEE - 1,300 14 1,314
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BEEZL - 1,200 14 1,214
Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen BiRRLE
(resigned on 17 July 2012) (R 2012F7 A 17 REHT) - 550 7 557
- 6,985 35 7,020

BN
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Notes to Financial Statements

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

2011

Executive directors: HTES
Mr. Ng Wai Man REREE
Mr. Ting Yian Ann BREZtE
Mr. Chong Yat Chin HAERE
Ms. Chan Wan Ming BBt
Mr. Kwan Chun Yuen BiRREE

BT ML
10. EEME (Z)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
E2d0 = BRE
e  REWET ATEIfER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT AT AT
- 935 - 935
- 3,002 - 3,002
- 1,300 12 1,312
- 1,200 12 1,212
- 1,002 12 1,014
- 7,439 36 7,475

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors of the

Company during the year were as follows:

Mr. Lau Sik Yuen
Mr. Luo Shijie
Mr. Zhu Wujun

FHREE
Bt REsA
RARELE

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent

non-executive directors during the year (2011: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, no remuneration was paid or

payable by the Group to other directors of the Company during

the year (2011: Nil).

FARARBBILIFRTEENZ

BT

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

240 240

150 150

150 150

540 540

FAMERMNBIIFNTEFTEMF

B (2011 : &)

B EXXPTIvEEE D -
BEADNHENEARAREMBERDN

AEBRFERL

e (20114 : &) o

.
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10.

11.

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2011: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2011: Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 11.

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2011: five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining one (2011: Nil) highest paid employee who is not a
director of the Company, are as follows:

e EMEREMET
RIS IR

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

No remuneration was paid or payable by the Group to the
five highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
the year (2011: Nil).

EEMe (&)

FA - AEBEWEEM D RENAR
RAEENME  EFANMALEH
A DN R B Y B B S ME AR B B A (R
(20114 : B) o

RAFEER - HEEEHEXFRENR
REAMEOZTE (20115 : F) -

RAFEANRER= S MESEN
ZEEQONFE: AR) HEFEMF
BN EXHFE10 - 82— (2011
F:E)WHARREENE =M
BENFHFBHIINAT -

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TAT
1,103 =
1,103 -

FMNF TIIEENFEE RS H M
BREMHEBLT

Number of employees
EENEE

2012 2011

1,000,001 7T Z 1,500,000 47T 1 =

REBRAFEEAL BEAS TR
NHRE=FHMERNMES - FRN
AR INAZ & B i 09 822 SRR AR
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Notes to Financial Statements

A RS SRR M

INCOME TAX 12. FRi8#R
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Current - Hong Kong BER—HB 14 -

Current - Elsewhere BIHR — H At 75

Charge for the year REFZH 21,154 755
Under/(over) provision in prior year FFEERETR (GBEEE) 228 (710)
Deferred - note 27 BIE —FI5E27 4,595 5,274
Total tax charge for the year AREERIAY HBEE 25,991 5,319

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has
been made for the year ended 31 December 2011 as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.

Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland China
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Under the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Implementation Rules (effective from 1 January 2008), the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rates for domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises are unified at 25%. The other major
tax concessions applicable to the Group’s Mainland China
subsidiary are detailed below.

BEEFEHERAFEANREBEE
B0 18 5T B SR A i ) A 16.5% A9BSR %
o BE2011 FE12 A1 HILEE
B AR E B EE B BE LT ER
Bt v Al - A0 AR A BB RS BB
1# o

AEBEF B L LG RRT
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BT B EH AR BRI
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RONE AR B ZE TS BT R 5T
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12,

INCOME TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the tax document Guoshui Han 2007 No. 2
“Approval on Enterprise Income Tax” issued by the national tax
authority of Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, Nanjing
Dragon Crown Liquid Chemical Terminal Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group, is entitled to preferential tax treatment
with full tax exemption from PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
for the first five profitable years, commencing from 1 January
2007, and thereafter is entitled to a 50% deduction in the EIT
rate for the subsequent five years. The Group’s assessable
income was subject to an EIT rate of 12.5% for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: 0%).

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position
at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Group - 2012

BBATEM, (E18)

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax at the applicable tax rates

Lower tax rate due to concession HRERSTE TR

Income not subject to tax BERBUBA

Expense not deductible for tax R

Tax loss utilised EFATIEREE

Adjustment in respect of 3B 7 F R BN ER RS 18
current tax of previous year 2

Effect of withholding tax on the AREE P B S

distributable profits of the Group’s AR BERRR

Mainland China subsidiary, associates  F£[F12 & 82 7] 7 Aic
A TR R 2

and jointly-controlled entities

Tax A

12. P8R (&)

R IE A BT & 4 B = BB B AR A9
FRAS S BFR 2007 552557 [ BER  2
FIEfmeEd]  AEEMEAR -
FARENREC T HEGEAR AT
ZEEBMBRAS - )R200741H1H
R E A E&A N FE ] FA e A Bl 2 AT
FR([REMEH])  HeRFa=
BEEMSHBERY - AEEEZE
2012412 A 31 B IEFE R E R
ANBIRB TG E12.5% (2011
F 1 0%) HF

BARB REWE AR AERDEER
BATE B R 5T B E AR ER A B A
MB RS A REERREAE

AT R EBRAN T -
REE—2012F
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B HEXE Ast

HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T FET  TER

(10,305) 150,236 139,931

BERR R EHTIR

(1,700) 37,559 35,859
- (16,405)  (16,405)
(519) (1,435) (1,954)

2,422 - 2,422
(189) - (189)

- 228 228

- 6,030 6,030

14 25,977 25,991
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12.

13.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR AR BT AE

INCOME TAX (continued)

Group - 2011

Profit/(loss) before tax BRBALRF](E1E)
Tax at the applicable tax rates REARETERNTIE
Lower tax rate due to concession ARELSTHETERE
Income not subject to tax BEFRBUBA
Expense not deductible for tax AT A
Adjustment in respect of BEFEREAFREZ
current tax of previous year Sk
Effect of withholding tax on the 755 (B R (B PRt T
distributable profits of the Group’s NCIRD: /NS ) Y

HEHEH B DB
/ﬁﬁlJE’Ji‘E%DfRE’J%;

PR

Mainland China subsidiary, associates
and jointly-controlled entities

Tax

The shares of tax attributable to associates and jointly-
controlled entities amounting to HK$31,000 (2011:
HK$361,000) and HK$2,042,000 (2011: HK$2,242,000) are
included in share of profits and losses of associates and jointly-
controlled entities, respectively, in the consolidated income
statement.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2012 included a loss of
HK$1,751,000 (2011: loss of HK$6,389,000) which has been

12. P8R (&)

AEE-2011 5

13.

Mainland

Hong Kong China Total
B RBIKE st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
(8,222) 116,779 108,557
(1,357) 29,195 27,838
- (28,440) (28,440)
(120) — (120)
1,477 = 1,477
= (710) (710)
= 5,274 5,274
- 5,319 5,319

FE (G B & A7) I LB P I BB R 18

7,%31,000,%71(2011@ 361,000
BIt) & 2,042,000/8 7T (2011 4F ¢
2,242,000 7T) "EIJ‘EH\%?GM&
mRABERR R EREHEEY
FEAE 3 ) K2 B 48 EP o

FLFHA ARGERT

AKAREE AREZ=2012F12 A

SIEBLEFERNEME S EHNBE
1,751,000/ 7T A & 8 (20114F :

.

-

dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. 6,389,000 TR EHE) - ERAR A
ISz PRI o
Annual Report 2012 £E#HRE 101



Notes to Financial Statements

B AR M R

14. DIVIDENDS 14. BRE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHIT
Proposed final dividends — HK5.5 cents EERHARE —
per ordinary share (2011: HK5 G EARS.5 8L
cents per ordinary share) (2011 5 : GAREEBAR S BIL) 61,031 55,483
The proposed final dividends for the year is subject to the N 2 R R HARR B A R B AR R A
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming FRg FESKNATREHRE ©
annual general meeting.
The proposed final dividends for the year ended 31 December RARF20124F5 5 8 H BFARAKE
2011 was approved at the annual general meeting on 8 May RERE FHEREHZ2011F128
2012. 31 BIEFEMREERPRE
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 15. FLFHBAERESFERET]
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculations of basic earnings per share are based on: BREXRBN ZFTEER :
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER T
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to owners of the NATEB A
Company, used in the basic R - ARETE
earnings per share calculation FREARZR 99,100 90,076
Number of shares
A EE
Shares [idvi)
Weighted average number of RARIBBITE RN
ordinary shares of the Company IR E
in issue used in the basic BRERZF
earnings per share calculation 1,109,662,000 984,190,405
No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no EEN NG AR e S T g G i
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue for both years. ARAR (D - AR 2| GAREEE R -
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost:
At 1 January 2011
Addltions
Transfers
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012

Addltions

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2012

R
R2011E1A1R
RE
BT
inj:=
AR

1201112 A31 B
R2012%1A18
AE

L

&

[

2012612 31 B

Accumulated depreciation: 23t &

At 1 January 2011

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012

Provided for during
the year - note 9

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2012

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

201161 A1 H
FREE-HE9

&
3% ¢]: 4

1201112 A31 B
R2012%1 A1H
FREE-HE9

i
& 5 %
201212 A31 B

REFE:
2012612 A31 8

201112 A31 B

Notes to Financial Statements

A RS SRR M

16. V¥ - BER®E

£ 4E
Construction Buildings and Motor Office

in progress structures vehicles equipment Total
TEIE BFREEN RE  BAERE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THEL THL T THL
3,390 636,643 2,137 1,272 644,042
10,259 1,697 1,125 228 18,209
(8,651) 8,651 - - -

- (304) - - (304)

204 31,429 142 64 31,839

5,202 678,016 4,004 1,564 688,786
117,606 861 297 266 119,030
(1,463) 1,463 - - -
- (18) (109) (250) (377)

1,413 5,540 28 10 6,991
122,758 685,862 4,220 1,590 814,430

- 100,374 1,235 691 102,300

- 33,394 575 234 34,203

- (105) - - (105)

- 5,716 74 51 5,841

- 139,379 1,884 976 142,239

- 34,386 723 208 35,317
- (11) (104) (198) (313)

- 1,535 20 9 1,564

- 175,289 2,523 995 178,807

122,758 510,573 1,697 595 635,623
5,202 538,637 2,120 588 546,547

.

-
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B AR M R

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 16.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s buildings and structures
were free of any pledge and security. As at 31 December
2011, certain of the Group’s buildings and structures with a net
carrying amount of HK$238,905,000 were pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17.
Carrying amount at 1 January ®1 A1 BREEE
Amortised during the year — note 9 S — 059
Exchange realignment HE 5 8 B
Carrying amount at 31 December ©»12 A 31 BMEREE
Current portion included in prepayments, st ATERR ~ 124 R EAM

deposits and other receivables FEWRIBR BN
Non-current portion FEMENEL

All the Group’s leasehold lands were held under long term
leases and were situated in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s leasehold lands were
free of any pledge and security. As at 31 December 2011,
certain of the Group’s leasehold lands with a net carrying
amount of HK$13,159,000 were pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26).

W mER®ME(E)

2012412 A31 B » REEREF
MWL E AR FIELR
R2011 612 A31 B * AEBR®EF
{64 238,905,000 8 L & THEF K&
EEYEERBTRT  (FARNAEE
BHRITRVE LR (F1sE26) ©

A LitE &

Group

rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THT
44,014 42,897
(972) (952)
345 2,069
43,387 44,014
(1,047) (1,039)
42,340 42,975

AEEEBAE L HYRRPHELOE
B RARPE AL -

R2012F12A31H A& EMHA
B2 B AR E AR FER o R
2011412 A31 B » AEEERAE FE
£13,159,000 8 cHH/ THELHE
BT RIT - (EARASERLRTT
LA R (FiEE26) ©
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18. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at the

beginning and end of the year N AREFE

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is related
to the cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the
handling of liquid chemicals. Its recoverable amount has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 10.1% (2011: 9.4%) and
cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
an inflation rate of 5% (2011: 5%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
cash-generating unit of terminal storage and the handling of
liquid chemicals. The following describes each key assumption
on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units.

Inflation rate — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to cost of sales and the revenue price are the forecast price
indices during the budget year in the PRC.

FHRFRAEA

A RS SRR M

[}
Group
rEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET AT
1,210 1,210
EERENR

BREBAHEE B RRENL
BONEEREREERENESEES
iz - K el S BEERNBSRETRE
AMEE 2 ERERNE - MRERE
&8I Th % B = AR R FE 2 T Bt
BHEEmME - M RETRRER 2
IR E10.1%(20114F  9.4%) » M
HMARAFHEAMNRESRERFERS%
(2011 4 : 5%) Z iBAREHER] o

AERSEABMRE(CRmIBEAR
7 REENEREERESIARE -
NTHAEREBAFERESRER
AAETEHERENR CSAEER

in .
=

HHRFE-FERIITRERBIEREE - X
RREBARSENEM 2 ER

B o

BRE-RARBEESEEBEREHEENX
ARBANEBRNEESBAREFEET
BT RIERIEEN -

N

-
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries

19. REBATMHKRE

RETRAD - A
& W Bt /B8 2 R 0R

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the

directors, these advances are considered as quasi-equity

loans to the subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Name registration
=L M AL, R
Ocean Ahead Limited BVI

REERAHS
Edford Investments Limited BVI
REREBRAT EEERAHES
Dragon Bussan International Hong Kong

Limited (“Dragon Bussan”’) BB
EAMERR AR ([FEAME])

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share
capital

28T

B

AEE

US$100
10037T

US$1
=

Ordinary
US$600,000
Non-voting
deferred
US$900,000
(note a)
Rl
600,000 7T
IS EERIE
f% 900,000 7T
(Mfzxa)

Company
PN

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THBT
1 1
339,250 256,422
339,251 256,423

RIBARIMBEREER 288
BEEERY BERR RFBK
R VEAM B R AR UEREE K

FEWNBARIFFELT :
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
VNN Principal
FE 1k B AE activities
Aot FREK
Direct Indirect
HiE ik
100 — Investment holding
AR
— 100 Dormant
NEED

100 Investment holding
and provision of
marketing services
TEER R

RHmS

HEE AR
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

=

Dragon Crown
Petrochemicals
Terminal (Holdings)
Limited

EAARE(RE)
BRAT]

Dragon Source Industrial
Limited
AL IER AT

Nanjing Dragon Crown

Liquid Chemical Terminal

Place of
incorporation/
registration

REMAR 3L it

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
BB

PRC
kR

Company Limited (“NJDC”)

MREAREBC T HERE
BRAR([FARERD

Ocean Access Investments

Limited
AHRBFRAR A

Hong Kong
BB

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

19. RBAFMERE (EZ)

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary share
capital

28T

=B

AHE

Ordinary
US$26,600,000
Non-voting
deferred
US$500,000
(note a)

LA
26,600,000 37T
B S RERE
}% 500,000 37T
(Hfzxa)

Ordinary
HK$26,000,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$2,000,000
(note a)

Rl
26,000,000 87T
B S RERE

f 2,000,000 78 7T

(MfzEa)

US$40,814,820
40,814,820 27T

HKS$1
187T

attributable to

Percentage

of equity

the Company
ANF] Principal
e AR RE activities
[ERa4 FEHEK

Direct Indirect

LFE3

100 Investment holding
and provision of

finance and
management

services

TEER R

RMEE AN

EERY

100 Investment holding
and provision of
accounting

services

TE AR R IR
GRS

88.61 Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
R mIBR

T KR IE

100 Investment holding
and provision of
administrative and
technical services
WA KR

7T IR B A i Bl 745

N

-
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19.

20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Note:

(a)

The non-voting deferred shares do not entitle the holders
thereof to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting of the respective companies. The holders
of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to any
dividends. On a winding-up, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares are entitled, out of the surplus assets of the
respective companies, to a return of the capital paid up on
the non-voting deferred shares held by them to one half of
the balance after a total sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000
has been distributed in such winding-up in respect of the
ordinary shares of the respective companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in

the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for

the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the

Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets

EIEEEFE

Particulars of the Group’s principal associate is as follows:

Particulars of

19.

20.

RBATMERE (5)
BAE -

@ ERERECRMIERTEBEF
B AREFI U ER AR 3R A & 8 &N sk i
BRARAAIERRRAEHNE LR
Z o M ZREERMGITHE AEE
I E RS - BB @ BIRE
BIRERGOITEA  BREREEAR
RIRBEET BREWHERAE
BEERREROEE Z’A - &
ZRBERRREARARNEERS
Jk 4238 100,000,000,000,000/8 T4
BEN =Dz — o

EERB LR ZARFMBR
REBHAEEREELTZENBEK
FAEBAHOEEFE - EFRS
Al BB AR EBIRMHZE
FHER UK -

RBEATFNRE

Group

M

2012
HK$’000

2011
HK$'000

19,423 22,973

REEZ EEBERAWFHENT

Percentage of
equity interest

issued shares
held Place of
Name BEE#T registration
=g R FAE =it
Tianjin Tianlong Liquid Registered capital of PRC
Chemicals Storage and US$1,950,000 H
Transportation Co., Ltd.* EftER
(RERERBICIHE 1,950,000 37T
BRAR])
s Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has

significant influence but not unilateral control over this

entity.

attributable to Principal

the Group activities

AEBEN FEEK
RER DL

65  Terminal storage

‘ RIBEMERM  AEEHZE
BEEATE -

and handling of
liquid chemicals
RE(ER

SR ET Mg i

{B f 8 — R4 o
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21.

Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the associate of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other associate would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

The following table illustrates the financial information of
the Group’s associates extracted from their management

accounts:

Assets BE
Liabilities aE
Revenue A
Profit/(loss) w A (E1R)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Share of net assets EhEEFE

B RS SRR M

20. MWEEAFNHKRE (Z)

BEERR - LR EEA DR 2B
ERAUAEEREELTEREN
BRARBARED 2EEFE - EF
R AR E MR E QR EE
HZERBRITE -

TRHFANEEB 2 A BREEZEE

EIRARE MM ER

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FHIT

31,161 36,981

686 1,045

8,425 16,481

(2,140) 3,349

21. RERZHNEROKRE

Group

M
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEr TET

26,878 27,313

-
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21.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

Particulars
of issued
shares held
Name BRERT
=g BRAD 5
Ningbo Xinxiang RMB4,200,000
Liquid Chemical 4,200,000 A K&
Store Co., Ltd.*
(R AR
TRRGEARAR)
Ningbo Ningxiang RMB7,350,000
Liquid Chemicals 7,350,000 AR #&

Terminal Co., Ltd.*
(ERERIE
AR AA])

The interests in the jointly-controlled entities are indirectly held

Place of
registration

afiiits

PRC
FE

PRC
e

21.

FEHFZEHEEAFELT

Percentage of

RERZFREOKRE (E)

Bk
Ownership Voting Profit Principal
interest power* sharing activities
BRERE REE* EHEA FEXRE
60 60 60 Terminal storage
and handling of
liquid chemicals
B BmiE
f#fF K
60 60 60 Terminal storage

and handling of

liquid chemicals
BB EmiSE
R

by the Company.
* Pursuant to the articles of association, the Group has joint * RIFAZETR  AEEEEM
control of these entities with other joint venture partners. NRIBHERIEHZEERE -

o
S

ARREERFELRZEH BB
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21.

22,

INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES 21.

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

Share of the jointly-controlled

entities’ assets and liabilities:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Share of the jointly-controlled
entities’ results:
Revenue
Other income

Total expenses
Tax

Profit after tax

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

FEAH H R

EREERAR:

BEAE

FEIE A RIEH B R

ES I
YA
HAg A

R
BB

BRI 1R A

22.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly

on credit, except for new customers, where payment in

advance is normally required. The credit period is generally 30

days, extending to up to 60 days for major customers. The

Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior

management. Accounts receivable are non-interest bearing.

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable approximate to

their fair values.

RERZHEREOKRE (Z)

IR ER B /O A 12 6 B BS 0 B 7S A AL SR
ZWRERMAT
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
16,512 17,151
11,909 12,775
(1,543) (2,613)
26,878 27,313
18,748 17,969
760 471
19,508 18,440
(11,911) (10,237)
(2,042) (2,242)
5,555 5,961
FEURBRRR
BRIRFE—MREBRENTIN  AEE
NEFAZ=ZFBEHAE - SR

R30K - EBEFHEGHAIRARE
REG0X - AEBBABIEHEREE

FEWARTK - mAREIEE
HIER - AR &

EERiwE e
BFRIE - B

R REEEE AR ERE

.

-
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22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22, MRS (&)
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the RERERIR - IRIBET B HIMm &R S8
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FEUSBRFRBREC DATAA T -
Group
AEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FHIT
Current to 30 days BNHAZ= 30 & 31,115 35,899
31 to 60 days 31 £60 X 8,999 3,958
40,114 39,857
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not RARVETRNE A FE UL BR SR A BR % 5 AT 40
considered to be impaired is as follows: ~:
Group
AEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
TET FHIT
Neither past due nor impaired BEAREHB IR ARE 40,114 39,857
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to B AR B R R R R (B HO FE U 3B T R AT
customers for which there was no recent history of default. HANP I R RS R AR o
As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s accounts receivable MR2012F 12 A31 B » AEBEAEK
were free of any pledge and security. As at 31 December 2011, BRFOLE IR APELR o 722011
certain of the Group’s accounts receivable with a net carrying ¢ 12A318 A&EBEBEFEAR
amount of HK$14,851,000 were pledged to banks to secure 14,851,00078 Jo A9 35 T & U BR 3R B K
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 26). WTRIT - ERAASERLRTH

AR (PRE26) -

BN
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. FfRH BERHEMEBIKRE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
TEH AATF
2012 2011 2012 2011

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TR TAT TR AT

Prepayments TR 3,471 3,381 378 172
Deposits and other e RHE M

receivables TR 1,340 860 208,396 111,507

4,811 4,241 208,774 111,769

Portion classified as current DA RENE E

assets #E D (4,408) (4,241) (208,774) (111,769)
Portion classified as PDERIEREEE

non-current assets EoF=iSaN 403 = - =
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. Pt EEBEARBIEAIARE o L4
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to R BIEN £ BB B B A W AR R
deposits and receivables for which there was no recent history MRS REWKIEE A - ZER
of default. The carrying amounts of these deposits and other & REAMEWIERREEEE QR
receivables approximate to their fair values. BiE

-
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24, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24. BERBASERY

Group Company
REE RATF

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FAT FET T
Cash and bank balances B MIRTTH 64,101 123,274 32,513 14,011
Time deposits TEHATE SR 201,614 279,969 125,601 279,969
Cash and cash equivalents 3R& RIS EEY 265,715 403,243 158,114 293,980

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$235,553,000 (2011: HK$251,987,000). The
carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate to
their fair values.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

MARERR - REBUARETA
REDsrENReRReEEBME
235,553,00077T (2011 £F : 251,987,000
B7r) - e RIReSEYHREE R
HAREREE o

ARBTEE R BKEMER - R
i AR R B A O INE B B (6151 )
FM(HEE - EERNEEEBRTE) &
SEEAE S BERBEETINEREER
R BARELBREMER -

FRIFTHRSRE RRITERME
¥ B) 8 R BREUAB. - R HIE B TF K
HRE—RE=EAA B AEENRE
FRME - W ARG HE BER
MEREBHE - RITEBRRERISR
BEOTR  FERIFAIRTT
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25, HMmEFRRERENER

Group Company
REE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TE T T FET T
Other payables AN 16,784 19,216 - -
Accruals fEsTE A 42,087 16,356 1,324 1,089
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETHIE A TZIE - - 11,585 4,955
58,871 35,572 12,909 6,044

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2012, included in other payables of the
Group was a payable of HK$1,243,900 (2011: HK$1,233,900)
due to the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Management
Committee which is the parent company of Nanjing Chemical
Industry Park Company Limited, a non-controlling interest
of the Group, representing the remaining outstanding
balance due to acquiring a prepaid land lease. Upon certain
conditions being fulfiled by the Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Management Committee, such as land levelling, the amount
will be settled.

As at 31 December 2012, included in other payables of the
Group was a dividend payable of HK$13,674,000 (2011:
HK$16,284,000) due to Nanjing Chemical Industry Park
Company Limited, a non-controlling interest of the Group. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Other than the balances mentioned above, other payables
are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of one
month. The carrying amounts of other payables and accruals
approximate to their fair values.

S B2 RN B REIER « TEE
REBRIEE -

R2012F12 31 H » AEBEHME
NREABERTERELBETEER
ZEg(AAKEEERARBERE
BTERARARNEAR)WFRIE
1,243,900/ 7T (20114F : 1,233,900/
JL)  lHEREESEN T HBEEM
FERT B R(EBRIBRATE - L2
T¥REEEBEMSE TIHRE(A
TR % - BB TEE -

R2012F12A31H A& B H
FE 1~ SR I A B AR R AN AN & B JE
BAGMmR{EBETERAFRA A
7 A% 818,674,000 JT (20114 :
16,284,000 7T ) ° #% X JH & & &
- RERERERER -

B EXX Pt ERIN - E MR RIA R
THERAFHERBR—EA - Eft
ENFANEERNEmEREZER
RIEAEE -

-
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 26. RHBRBITHEH®
Effective
interest 2012 2011
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 HK$’000
BERAZE (%) FIEAH FET FAT
Current
TREE D
Secured The People’s (2011: 2012) - 144,474
BHEA Bank of China (“PBOC?”) (20114 : 20124F)
base rate, plus 5%/PBOC
base rate, discounted by
5%-10%/HIBOR+1%
R A RIRTT
(THBEARRIT])
EEFIE - J15%, FEH
ARIRITEERZE -
HT7E 5%-10%/
BARITRZEFEFE+1%
Secured PBOC base rate, 2013 12,031 -
BHEA discounted by 5%
PR ARBITEENXK - 20134
% 5%
Non-current
FEREIER D
Secured PBOC base rate, (2011: 2013) - 11,935
HHE discounted by 5%
B A RARTTEAEF= - (20114 : 20134F)
P& 5%
12,031 156,409
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: IRITEFZAEN A THIRER
Within one year or on demand 1 FAFIREK 12,031 144,474
In the second year F2F - 11,935
12,031 156,409

BN
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continued)

Notes:

(@  The Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2012 were secured
by corporate guarantees granted by the Company.

(b)  The Group’s bank loans as at 31 December 2011 were secured
by:

(i) corporate guarantees granted by the Company;

(ii) fixed charges over certain buildings and structures with
a net carrying amount of HK$238,905,000 as at 31
December 2011 (note 16);

(iii) fixed charges over certain leasehold land with a net
carrying amount of HK$13,159,000 as at 31 December
2011 (note 17); and

(iv)  floating charges over certain accounts receivable with
a net carrying amount of HK$14,851,000 as at 31
December 2011 (note 22).

(c) The carrying amounts of these bank loans approximate to their
fair values at the end of the reporting period.

B RS SRR M

26. R EBITEIH(Z)

Bt -

AREER2012F12 A31 BRRITE
FRIAZR R AHR R ZE R EE -

AEBMN 2011512 31 BHRTT
BERTIAATIRE (R

() ANREHEHAIBRER

(i)  H2011E128318 « HEE
S% {85 238,905,000 B TTEIE
TEF R ELEY & EE KT
(ERDE

@iy  M2011E12A318 - HRA
1B 413,159,000 78 7T B &
THHE L e E 2 AR (BT 5E
17) + &

(v 20114128318 - HEKE
% B 4314,851,0008 T &
TR AR SRS B4R (P

22)
R|ERR  ZERITEFOERE
EEEARERE
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EBERER

The movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the RAFERLEFREABENNEEZEEF

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

BT RATR -

EEHEAE

Withholding
taxes
AN
HK$ 000
THET
At 1 January 2011 R20114E1H1H 6,730
Deferred tax charged to the income B ARG R NBRAEERIE — 312
statement during the year - note 12 5,274
Withholding tax paid on repatriation B AR] - EEEHIERE MEE AR
of earnings from subsidiaries, b H 28 1 if 2 < A9 TR AR
jointly-controlled entities
and associates (6,488)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B 147
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 72011412 A31 H &% 201241 A1 H 5,663
Deferred tax charged to the income B FARE R NGB AEERIR 6,030
statement during the year
Withholding tax paid on repatriation B AR] - EEEHIE S MEE AR
of earnings from subsidiaries, b H 28 1 i S2 < A9 TR AR
jointly-controlled entities
and associates (5,697)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 8 B 65
At 31 December 2012 2012412 431 H 6,061
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N

27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. BERIE(Z)

Deferred tax assets IREFRIEBEE
Timing difference on
revenue recognition
of taxable profit

PERRT = A
WA TR
REEE
HK$’000
THET

At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 R201141 H18 20119F12 A31 H
and 1 January 2012 &201291 A18 -

Deferred tax credited to the income STARFE FRERRA

statement during the year BB IE 1,435
Exchange realignment PE 5 H % 17
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A31 H 1,452

BIBEPECEMERE - MBI
BRI BYINE (R ERPIBEIME B EBIRAR
Bk 5%-10% B FBFIH o %R
TEH20084F1 A1 BRER - WEAR
200712 H31 B Z BEAMAF -
fin P B B3R AME & & BT Rl A & R
FEBBERRZ - A IREREER
TR - At - AEBERAHE
taxes on dividends distributed by the subsidiary, associates AR FIBTE AR « B A | Rt
and jointly-controlled entities established in Mainland China in Ee 4 EEE N 200841 A1 BAEFT
RBHEERSBMTENFR o

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5%-10%
withholding tax rate is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings generated after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group is therefore liable to withholding

respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

-
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

4,000,000,000 (2011: 4,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:

1,109,662,000 (2011: 1,109,662,000)
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital during the

year were as follows:

At 1 January 2011

Capitalisation issue
Issue of new shares

At 31 December 2011,
1 January 2012
and 31 December 2012

BN

Notes to Financial Statements

28. W&
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT FHET
EE
4,000,000,000 f%
(2011 4 : 4,000,000,000 fi%)
FIXEEO0.1 BT 2 TR 400,000 400,000
ERTRME :
1,109,662,000 %
(2011 £ : 1,109,662,000 %)
FREEO1 BT TEAR 110,966 110,966

RERARRA D ETRANE B L0

T
Number of
shares in Issued
Notes issue capital
B 5T BERTROEE BRITRA
HK$’000
FET
R2011%F1 A1H 825,000 83
BARET () 824,175,000 82,417
BEITHRR D (ii) 284,662,000 28,466
R2011F12 831 8
20121 A1B R
2012412 A31 H 1,109,662,000 110,966
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the resolution passed on 23 May 2011, an
aggregate of 824,175,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
of the Company were allotted and issued, credited as
fully paid at par, to the then shareholders whose names
appeared on the register of members of the Company at
close of business on 23 May 2011 by way of capitalisation of
the amount of HK$82,417,500 from the amount standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company in
proportion to their existing shareholdings in the Company.

(if) On 10 June 2011, the Company issued 275,000,000
new shares at HK$1.1 per share by way of a global
offering for a total cash consideration before expenses of
HK$302,500,000.

On 2 July 2011, the over-allotment option was partially
exercised by the stabilising manager on behalf of the
underwriters in respect of 9,662,000 over-allotment
shares to cover over-allocation conditional placing of the
international placing shares at offer price to professional,
institutional and private investors. The over-allotment
shares were issued and allotted by the Company at
HK$1.10 per share, resulting in proceeds of approximately
HK$10,628,000 before expenses.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme is included in
note 29 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 23 May 2011 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) to provide incentives to eligible
participants (including employees, executives or officers,
directors including non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers,
customers and agents of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries) for their contribution to the long term growth of
the Group and to enable the Company to attract and retain
high calibre employees. During the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2011, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled by the Company under the Share Option Scheme.
There were no outstanding share options under the Share
Option Scheme as at 31 December 2012 (201 1: Nil).

28.

29,

B RS SRR M

Bz (&)
BIFE

i) BRI 2011 4 5 A 23 B BB ARZ
R ARRFEBEARFRGDEE
B8R 2 #EBR 7158 82,417,500 7 T i i%
R BT 2 BRAEELL 5] T A
BAR{L - WP 2011465 A 23 B4
#E R B 71 AR A B AR R A i B0 AR R
Ao 2% [ 25174 ££824,175,000% &%
HEE01E LA - WZEEA
BR%I B EIUR BT BAR o

(i) M2011F6H10H + KR T FE A
2IRBEENT RIAEB T ET
275,000,000 %A% - SR FSZ
ATAB3A € R {E/5302,500,000/8 7T °

R2011E7 A28 » BEBHREHA
REBIER D114 & 9,662,000
AR BB AC AR (0 2 FAREBCARAE LA
HEAFEBENEE  BERFLA
KEEBGHBIEBESHERE
B o BEEELERMD E AARRA R
FAR1.10B LB T RECE - ESH
W B 2 AT FT 48 SR IE 4V 10,628,000 74
=0

AR AE R S IR RN M R
FiEE29 »

RRRR st ®

REEB 201145 A 23 BERAREEAR 1
srEl([EREEl]) BTEREEE
BREE (BEAR R HEAEMKNE
RAZIEE TRABSSAEE
Ex(RREIFNTES KRB IIENT
%) B #WE - #HER T
FRERARRE)  BHESAEERAE
RIEH 2 BRL - REAREE RN RIE
BRI B®2ER - RBE2012F K&
201112 A1 HIEFER © &AAF]
BHER BB ERT SR - 17T
5 B8 PR #E o 2012412 A318H -
REAR M ST & T R T 2 B AR
(20114 + &) »

-
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30. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

changes in equity.

(i)

(i)

(i)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly represented the difference
between the consideration and the book value of
the share of the net assets acquired in respect of
the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Reserve funds

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer a
certain percentage of its statutory annual profit
after tax (after offsetting any prior year’s losses), if
any, to the reserve funds until the balance of the
funds reaches 50% of its respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions as set out in
the relevant PRC regulations, the statutory surplus
fund may be used to offset against accumulated
losses of the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the
transfer is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations
in the PRC which are dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 3.

A%H

A EE B RIAAED 25

REFAMREDE -

0 EAEE
B ET BRI
I A A2 ) X B B
P AR B
-

() FEEES

(i)

& B E A A A B OA
M ARER T BRI
MEBARAZRETEDL
WRERN R (EHEIW
BEFEBRR)REF
Bar(me)=E@EE
T BEEESHEBRED
MEARE 0% - EEFH
BPBUERAENE TR
T SEERBRAEERA
ISP P NI
RIEER  ERSRAK
TR B AR ESSRHL
#E °

(BN R B

EXRBRHERRRE

BB RREE LN
FTAEINEZER - WARERM
A3 PAE M BT BRI
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BT ML
30. RESERVES (continued) 30. fi¥fw (&)
(b) Company (b) ZARAF
Proposed
final
Share Retained dividend
premium profits =4 Total
RiEE REER  RKERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FAT FHT T
At 1 January 2011 M201141 A1 8 244,767 18,207 - 262,974
Capitalisation issue BT (82,417) - = (82,417)
Issue of new shares BATHRR (D 284,662 - = 284,662
Share issue expenses 1T E A (15,508) - - (15,503)
Total comprehensive FAZERALLE
income for the year - 95,446 - 95,446
Proposed final dividends &z R HA% S - (55,483) 55,483 -
At 31 December 2011 2011412 A31 H
and 1 January 2012 K2012%1 A1H 431,509* 58,170* 55,483 545,162
Total comprehensive FAEHERALE
income for the year - 92,585 - 92,585
Final dividends paid BT RER S - - (55,483) (55,483)
Proposed final dividends &3 & 2% & - (61,031) 61,031 -
At 31 December 2012 1R 20124 12 A31 H 431,509* 89,724* 61,031 582,264
* These reserve accounts comprises the reserves of * ZEFBERBEMBMRNE

HK$521,233,000 (2011: HK$489,679,000) in the
statement of financial position.

A B R #8521,233,0007% 7T
(2011 4 : 489,679,000 %

L) ©

-
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31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ As at 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
other payables and accruals in relation to addition
of construction in progress of HK$23,236,000. The
additions have had no cash flow impact to the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

(b) As disclosed in note 28() to the financial statements,
during the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company
capitalised HK$82,417,500 from the amount standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company
by allotting and issuing an aggregate of 824,175,000
ordinary shares to the then shareholders of the Company
whose names appeared on the register of members of
the Company at close of business on 23 May 2011.

(0 During the year ended 31 December 2011,
HK$7,301,000 in relation to purchase of items of
property, plant and equipment was transferred from
deposits paid for items of property, plant and equipment.

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has provided
a guarantee, amounting to approximately HK$27,675,000
(2011: HK$173,220,000), to banks in connection with loans
granted to subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2012, the loan
balance of subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to banks
by the Company amounted to approximately HK$12,031,000
(2011: HK$156,409,000).

31.

32.

FeRKRERME

TEHFRERS

(@ H2012912H318 » KREES
BEBAMEEIENEME
7 5038 & [ 5T & 5 283,236,000
BT e ZAMEREBREZE
2012 12 A 31 H It FE R &
REREFE -

(b) 40P RS HRER T FE28() AT B
REZ2011F12831 8 L F
B ARaEBERD R ER
2 # BR 7X 5882,417,50078 JT
T A& AN b M K201 65 A
23HEHEAERKRIARNTRK
REMARRAEE RETE L
824,175,000 i A% -

€ REZE2011FE12A31H IEF
B BRBEYE  BEKZE
15 B 7,301,000 LA E TR e
EREYE - WEREREEE -

BRAR

RABERR  AEE A EEMER
HARRIE

RAREIR S ARAHIR FH B
AREIZERARTIRE—HDSEE
#927,675,0007% JT 2 ¥ R (2011 4F
178,220,000/%7T) ° 742012412 A 31
B BEBEARARERITELAOER -
B B A B & FRER SR IE4Y 12,081,000%
7t (2011 4F : 156,409,000/87T) °
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases certain portion of its office building
under an operating lease arrangement, with the lease
negotiated for a term of five years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

Within one year 1 FA

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

As lessees

The Group leases certain portion of its office premises
and pipe racks under operating lease arrangements.
The leases are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 15
years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

PR ERAR BT RE

33. EEHARH

(a)

F2EXSFRN(BREEEMF)

(b)

Within one year 15K
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~E2Z&5F (BIEEHEME)
After five years 5&F

The Company had not entered into any operating lease
arrangements as at 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil).

ERHAA

AEERBEEHELHHEE
HERFENETHY  ZHO
WERSFH -

RE|BE R - NEEH AR
HEEHENRRKEHES 2
BAN T HIFHRESHER :

2012
HK$’000
FiR

2011
HK$’000
AT

483 =
1,611 =

2,094 =

ERFERAA

AEERBELHERFHEE
HETMAMERER - %F
HOFHHERIEIEF -

REBEIR > NEEF A
HEEHENARARKEHE A
AR NIFERRHBEASN

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx TET
12,939 11,596
50,605 38,452
50,098 50,068
113,642 100,116

MR2012F12 A31 8 » NAAW
EET RS EHEZHE (2011
F:F)o

-
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34. COMMITMENTS

35.

In addition to the operating lease arrangements detailed in
note 33 above, the Group had the following capital expenditure
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Buildings and structures BFREEY)
Authorised, but not contracted for:
Buildings and structures BFREEY)

The Company did not have any commitments as at 31
December 2012 (2011: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in

these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

ERTA - BREHE

B BEARETA

34, KiE

35.

Br =X HIRESS PTRFlC EHE L2
N RIREEIR - ANEEE FHIER
HRIE

Group

AEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT T

19,543 3,373

352,687 482,726

MR2012412 A31 H * KRR E
fAlEHE (20114 : B) »

RABALES
(@) FRMBWMEREAMT AL

R REERFRNE R
BEALETATRS -

126 Dragon Crown Group Holdings Limited 2Ef&@iERER A



\

.

Notes to Financial Statements

A RS SRR M

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BABKALRH (&)
(@) (continued) (@ (&)
Group
rEHE
2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FaE FExT T
Terminal storage income: SRR FWA
Dragon Crown Investments BEAMCIEEAERAR () 3,541 3,468
Limited (“DC Investments”) ([BEEAME TR )
Terminal service expenses: ISERS S ¢
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park ARt ET ¥R (ii) 1,844 1,871
Public Services Company Ltd. NAEXEERE
ERA
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park mRtBETER (i 584 546
Management Committee EREEE
Rental expenses: MESH -
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park mAREETER (i) 9,578 9,382
Company Limited BRAFR
(“Nanjing CIPC”) (TExECIPC])
DC Investments BEAE TR (iv) 1,494 1,494
Notes: PiRE -

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Terminal storage income was charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group
and the related company in which one director of the
Company is the ultimate controlling shareholder of this
related company.

Terminal service expenses were charged in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the Group and
the related companies which were the group companies
of a non-controlling shareholder of NJDC.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and a non-
controlling shareholder of NJDC for the use of pipe racks.

Rental expense was charged in accordance with the
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the
related company for the use of an office premise.

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BB REFRATRIEAEE
B2 B Bgk 73 B AR B 15 7€ B0 16K
WE - ARB]—REERZ
R R R BAHEARBRR -

BB MRS S i TR IB AR
B2 B Bgk 73 A A B 15 7€ B0 16K
A o ZFAEE A B R R R
AFEZERBRETOER R
Al e

MES KR EA K E LR
FRBE PR e SEHR AR AR A 2
ERBE BER GRS

MES KRB AR EHE %
2l WNEIbREd R N E =
B e GRS AT

-
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Commitments with related parties

U

(i)

On 3 December 2012, a subsidiary of the Group,
as the lessor, entered into a three-year terminal
storage agreement ending on 31 December 2015
with DC Investments. The total operating lease
commitment fully due within one year and in the
second to fifth years as at 31 December 2012 were
approximately HK$1,493,000 and HK$2,985,000,
respectively.

On 19 April 2011, a subsidiary of the Group,
as the lessor, entered into a two-year terminal
storage agreement that ended on 31 December
2012 with DC Investments. The total operating
lease commitment fully due within one year
as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$3,554,000.

On 3 December 2012, a subsidiary of the Group,
as the lessee, entered into a three-year office
lease agreement ending on 31 December 2015
with DC Investments. The total operating lease
commitment fully due within one year and in the
second to fifth years at 31 December 2012 were
approximately HK$1,494,000 and HK$2,988,000,
respectively.

On 12 November 2010, a subsidiary of the
Group, as the lessee, entered into a twenty nine
month office lease agreement that ended on 31
December 2012 with DC Investments. The total
operating lease commitment fully due within one
year as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
HK$1,494,000.

35. RBALER(E)

(b)

) B 75 1 HH 2 74

@

(i

201212 A3H » A&
B2z —HEHNEBRAREEL
TAANEED L TERET L
HZE2015F 1283181k
AH=F 2B EE T
& o HBLE 20124 12 A 31
HIEFE —FEE_F
FRFNBRCERERE
DRI A491,493,0007% 7T
% 2,985,000/ 7T °

R2011F4 5198 » A&
B2z —EHNBARESL
TAABEEAE THBREI S
HZE2012F12 831 B LA
HARR4F 2 S SR 17 o ©
H 22011128318 1
FE —FRALKEHE
HIE 5493,554,000/8 7T °

R2012E12 H3H » A&
Bz — BB A RERE
AN TEIFEFT
HZE2015%12 8318 1k
BH=ZF 2 HAZHEW
o HLE 2012412 A 31
HIEFE —FARE=
EERFRERKEREX
¥& 5 Bl & #91,494,000 %5
7T} 2,988,000 7T °

MR2010F11 A12 8 -
REEZ —HHBRARE
AT A BRI T B
ST E 2012412 A 31
Bt &2 8 2 # A
EHE W B ZE2011
F12A31HILFEE > —
FARCEHERELLD
1,494,000/ 7T °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 35. ABMALXS(E)
(b) Commitments with related parties (continued) (b) MIEEEAIER & (&)

@iy  In March 2007, a subsidiary of the Group entered (i) M2007F3A @ AEEZ

into a fifteen year lease agreement ending on 14 —EAEB AR ERER

March 2022 with Nanjing CIPC for use of pipe CIPCRL{FERE R HZ

racks. The total operating lease commitments fully 202243 H14H L AH15

due within one year, in the second to fifth years, F 7 BE W - BE2012

and beyond the fifth year as at 31 December F12A31HILEFE —

2012 were approximately HK$11,445,000 FRN - F_FE2FRFR

(2011: HK$9,613,000), HK$47,617,000 (2011: FF PR 2 S T S
HK$38,452,000) and HK$50,097,000 (2011: & 9 5 4 A& 11,445,000
HK$50,068,000), respectively. 77t (2011 4F : 9,613,000

7 I )~ 47,617,0007 JT
(2011 £ : 38,452,00078
7T ) K&50,097,000% JT
(2011 £ : 50,068,000 78

JL) °
(c) Details of the outstanding balances with related parties () BB ATHRETELRE
are included in note 25 to the financial statements. BRI SR ERMIFE25 ©
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d XTEBHNEZESIEASIEN
the Group
Group
REE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FiBT
Short term employee benefits 2B E B2 A 9,303 8,558
Post-employment benefits RIREEA 57 46
Total compensation paid ENEEER
to key management personnel PN=LEoEAT FEk 9,360 8,604

Annual Report 2012 £EHRE 129



Notes to Financial Statements

B AR M R

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. BREEISHEMTIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REREHHKR  SHEEeTEMNER
instruments as at the end of the respective reporting period are (EE 2N
as follows:
Financial assets — loans and receivables SRIEE — B REWGIE
Group
ArEE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Accounts receivable JEUBR X 40,114 39,857
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATEN K ~ 124 R E M FEIL
deposits and other receivables (note 23) HEMEEEE (MiFE23) 1,340 860
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEFEY 265,715 403,243
307,169 443,960
Company
ANF]
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FATT

Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATEN R ~ 124 R E M FEIL

deposits and other receivables (note 23) IR 2 & E (5 23) 208,396 111,597
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 158,114 293,980
366,510 405,577
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P % e R
36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 36. BENBSMEMIA(E)
(continued)
Financial liabilities — at amortised cost SR B E RN AR
Group
REE
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT THET
Other payables and accruals HAb T RIA R EET & A 58,871 35,572
Interest-bearing bank loans SHEERITER 12,031 156,409
70,902 191,981
Company
RANF]
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Other payables and accruals H i sa ke &R 12,909 6,044

-
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank loans. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts receivable, financial assets included
in deposits and other receivables and other payables and
accruals, which mainly arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s net debt obligations with
floating interest rates. The majority of the bank borrowings bear
interest at rates with reference to the PBOC base rate and
HIBOR. The Group mitigates the risk by monitoring closely the
movements in interest rates and reviewing its banking facilities
and borrowings regularly. The Group has not used any interest
rate swap to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

37. MERBREEEEREE

AEENTIZSHIABRKERS MR
SEEMARGTBRITER - %52
BTATEZANSAEEZELER
B AKEBAHMZHESHEE
REE  PINMEREERKEEELDN
FEMRRTK 5T AR S S LAl FE UK IR
B & BB DA S EL A 5 SRR K AT
g/ -

AEESRMTAMSRNEZRBR S
MERR - EERBRERBDE S
% BEEERHAHEERLFTRAR
MR - 2 SBRAOMENT -

FIEmE

AEETHOTIENEEHEREE
EAEE T BT RS B0 FERE
BEM - ABHRITEENE2R
B A R SRR IR R B BRI
#iF 8 RHE - AREEBMBEFIE
BB ES IR T R ST IR T A R f
BB EER - A% B R B A
| S B S SR LR o
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Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in PBOC rates and HIBOR, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate bank borrowings).

31 December 2012
PBOC base rate

31 December 2011
PBOC base rate
HIBOR

Credit risk

The Group primarily provides services to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that advanced
payments are generally required for new customers. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Since the Group
primarily provides services to recognised and creditworthy third
parties, there is normally no requirement for collateral.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable
and financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments. As at 31 December 2012, there is a
concentration of credit risk as approximately of 61.7% (2011:
61.6%) of the Group’s accounts receivable is due from one
debtor. The Company is also exposed to credit risk through
the granting of guarantee, further details of which are disclosed
in note 32 to the financial statements.

2012412 A31 H
B A RERTTEZEF R

2011412 A31 H
B A RERTTEZEF R
BERITRIEREE

37.

A RS SRR M

MERREEEARRBE(Z)

Pz (&)

TRETEEMERAZERT - F
BARBRITEENEREBRITRZE
KEREEESHHAEE R ANG
M OCEBEF BRITIEENFE) M8

Change in
Change in profit
basis points before tax
HE2E BRBL AT
gL =)
HK$’000
T
50 60
50 529
50 253
1ZE

AEEETZAERALEERFNSE
= RHERY - AEERRRENRT
P—RASMTARMK o thoh - KR
BESRGR BB - AEENE
FRERI ANEAX - HRAEEEE(R
ERAREERFHNE=ZTRER
% At — R BAFE R -

rEBNeREE(RREREE RS
ZEY BWERER - ARFTATER
R EeMHEMERZFENESRE
BE)MEERR A5 ELTE -
ERARREASERZETENER
B R2012F 12831 H ' ARAE
B fE W BR 5K R B 4961.7% (2011 & -
61.6%) R E —ALEBA @ BIFEESF
EERBE®E - AR aMEREE S
RAEER - BEFIBERERM R
FMIEES2 ©

-
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and
financial assets (for example, accounts receivable) and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internal funding and bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the respective reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

37. MERBRERZARRBE (Z)

=R (&)

BREAEBEURRR R ATER K
Re R EMENRENGREEES
HEERRAE -T2 EED BIE
BERKizE22 K23 e

MBI EL/ER

AEEEEZECRAGEREREE
(Blan U BR ) A R FRAHE & IR
ERENIHAREREESRRN
[ o

AEENBEREBERNITES R
RITER EESREMRBEREZ
ARG TE WneH2EEe®

AEBERSHRERRER G KRR
NROEBBENZIBERET

2012
3to
Less than 12 months 1to5
Ondemand 3 months 3{ARZE years Total
RER PR3 EA 1218 B 1255 st
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TFET THT TFH T TFET THT
Interest-bearing bank &t BRTTER
loans - 12,068 - - 12,068
Other payables and ~ EAtbfE 3/IE &
accruals FEsTE R 14,918 43,953 - - 58,871
14,918 56,021 - - 70,939
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37.
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Less than

On demand 3 months
BERK PREEA
HK$'000 HK$’000

BT ML
HMERBEEARREE (Z)
B E DA ()

2011
3to
12 months 1to5
3EAZE years Total
12{8 8 1Z=5%F st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

T FAT F#T FHIT FHT
Interest-bearing bank &FEIRTTER
loans - 268 149,548 12,675 162,491
Other payables and ~ E-fth fEfHZRIE K
accruals JESTE A 17,518 18,054 — - 35,572
17,518 18,322 149,548 12,675 198,063

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the respective reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Other payables and accruals Hit (IR KR B R
Guarantee given to banks in connection SRS A RRER R RS
with loans granted to subsidiaries HAREANER

utilised at the end of the reporting period MRRITIEHER

DTG B RO ER S DK
AN RO SBEBOFEERT

2012

Less than
Ondemand 3 months Total
REREE LH3MER st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TRER TR TR

11,585 1,324 12,909
12,031 - 12,031
23,616 1,324 24,940

.

-
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Other payables and accruals HitEfaoakesrgf
Guarantee given to banks in connection SRMTE A RN RS
with loans granted to subsidiaries HAREREER

utilised at the end of the reporting period MRRITIEH &R

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

37.

MERREEERRBE(Z)

REE AR (E)

2011

Less than
Ondemand 3 months Total
REXER SRR @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

4,955 1,089 6,044

166,409 - 156,409

161,364 1,089 162453
BEAEH

AEEEREENTERRARER
SEBRNFERLLEE  LHESR
BEVEARLL R EMHERBER
NEAREMIRITREE -

AREBEEIEEE RGBS RIBEER
LB ) N AR B O B B LA
AT - BERFSGAREARARE K
SE A RERBRRRNARE - [
RIREBARNKEITHIIK
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

38.

39.

POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors the capital ratio on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio, which is calculated as the net debt
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company plus
net debt. Net debt includes other payables and accruals and
interest-bearing bank loans, less cash and cash equivalents.
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio as at the end of the
respective reporting period was as follows:

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans ETRIRITE R

Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net cash REF5E

ZN/NCIEZEPN
FE(h TS

ERRBEFE

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Capital and net debt

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 February 2013, the Group entered into a construction
agreement with an independent third party to construct and
build a cryogenic ethylene tank and other associated facility in
Nanjing at a contract sum of RMB101,880,000 (equivalent to
HK$126,859,000). The contract sum will be fully funded by the
Company’s initial public offering proceeds. The construction
is scheduled to be completed by the second quarter of 2014.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 6 February 2013.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2013.

37.

HLA R 5 5R0R e BT B AR

B ReRREEFEY

BERLEHBER L X

38.

39.

A RS SRR M

MERREEEARRBE(Z)

BXREHE (E)

AEER A ARG AR E AN e
BARLE - gttt R IR B EFER
AARRBHA AEHERINAEFE
ZMEH - BEFESEEMENK
AR ERARG B RITER B
BEEERHBREARLLRMT -

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

58,871 35,572

12,031 156,409

(265,715) (403,243)

(194,813) (211,262)

900,388 849,824

705,575 638,562

N/A N/A
HEREER

2013526 H  ANEBRNER
ERkEE—AER G R M
HEREE —RB L E=HT T2
e - & RBEE AR 101,880,000
7T (7 126,859,000 7T ) ° & [
BEBR AR B G IR AFEEER
B EEE - BRERFTEIR 2014
FE_FERT - BAE—TFHEBEH
RAAFTBHA2013FE2 A6 BMA
15 o

#EMBHEE

EESCR2013F3 A 12BBARE
T BB TSR K o

-
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/ Five Year Financial Summary

T FHBEHE
Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

FEx FTHxT FTET FET FTHEx
REVENUE A 257,770 240,675 233,024 198,547 150,095
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRFR A1 s A 139,931 108,557 125,193 107,979 75,664
Tax 18 (25,991) (5,319) (8,036) (6,043) (3,643
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 113,940 103,238 117,157 101,936 72,021
Attributable to: AR ALRES
Owners of the Company IN/NCIEZ SN 99,100 90,076 96,745 85,304 60,447
Non-controlling interests AR 14,840 13,162 20,412 16,632 11,574

113,940 103,238 117,157 101,936 72,021

At 31 December
A12H31H

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

FoEx THxT FTET TFET FTHEx
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 727,329 641,018 640,918 626,071 640,380
Current assets mENEE 314,685 451,493 104,187 62,673 65,273
Total assets EERE 1,042,014 1,092,511 745,105 688,744 705,653
LIABILITIES i=Fi
Current liabilities mENEE 77,344 180,100 92,861 117,182 158,351
Non-current liabilities EmEaE 6,061 17,598 168,918 284,075 356,611
Total liabilities B ERRE 83,405 197,698 261,779 401,257 514,962
Net assets BEFE 958,609 894,813 483,326 287,487 190,691
Total equity AR 958,609 894,813 483,326 287,487 190,691

The summary does not form a part of the audited financial ZHEU N RERYBREN—F D -
statements.

BN
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Unit No. 3, 18th Floor

Convention Plaza, Office Tower

No. 1 Harbour Road

Hong Kong
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County of Yudai

Nanjing Chemical Industry Park

Liuhe District, Nanjing City

Jiangsu Province, the PRC
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